

### National Institute of Corrections

### Corrections Program Office Office of Justice Programs

# Tribal Resource Guide

## www.nicic.org July 2002

U.S. Department of Justice National Institute of Corrections 320 First Street, N.W. Washington, DC 20534

> Morris L. Thigpen Director

Larry Solomon Deputy Director

Allen Ault Chief, Special Projects Division

> **Dee Halley** *Project Manager*

**Colleen Boskin** Corrections Program Office, Office of Justice Programs

> National Institute of Corrections World Wide Web Site http://www.nicic.org

## **Tribal Resource Guide**

http://www.nicic.org

July 2002

## Foreword

The Corrections Program Office, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice compiled the information contained in this guide in 2001, and has requested that NIC post it on its Web site. The Tribal Resource Guide offers a brief synopsis of program objectives, applicant eligibility, eligible beneficiaries, the types of assistance available, and contact information for each resource. While much effort and research went into trying to make this guide as accurate and current as possible, it does not guarantee the availability of funds, nor does it guarantee that a grant's criteria and direction will remain the same.

The intent of this guide is to provide the reader with the current options being offered by various federal agencies. Please use this guide with the understanding that deadlines for application may have already passed. To ensure the availability of a resource listed in this guide, please use the contact information provided to contact the awarding federal office directly. The information provided here should serve as a guide when researching past, present, and future options.

As part of the mission of the National Institute of Corrections (NIC), to provide information and services to its customers, we are pleased to be able to offer the Tribal Resource Guide on our Web site. NIC welcomes any suggestions you may have regarding the content and style of this publication. Please feel free to complete the Feedback Form located at the end of the guide regarding this publication and suggestions on how NIC can serve you better.

Morris L. Thigpen Director National Institute of Corrections

## **Table of Contents**

Foreword	 	 	

### **U.S. Department of Agriculture**

Tribal Colleges Education Equity Grants
Tribal Colleges Endowment Program
Indian Tribes And Tribal Corporation Loans1
Commodity Supplemental Food Program
Food Distribution Program On Indian Reservations
Environmental Quality Incentives Program
Forestry Incentives Program
Small Farmer Outreach Training and Technical Assistance Program
Business and Industry Loans
Technical Assistance and Training Grants
Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities

### **U.S. Department of Commerce**

Economic Adjustment Assistance	 .7
Basic Minority Business Development Centers	 .7
Minority Business Opportunity Committee Development	 .8
Native American Program	 .8
Habitat Conservation	 .9

### **U.S. Department of Defense**

Community Economic Adjustment Planning Assistance for Community Base Reuse Plans	11
Growth Management Planning Assistance	11
Community Economic Adjustment Planning Assistance for Joint Land Use Studies	12
Community Economic Adjustment Planning Assistance	13
Community Economic Adjustment Planning Assistance for Reductions in Defense Industry Employment .	13

### **U.S. Department of Education**

Even Start - Indian Tribes and Tribal Organizations	.15
Indian Education - Grants to Local Educational Agencies	.15
Minority Science and Engineering Improvement	.16
Rehabilitation Services - American Indians with Disabilities	.16

#### **U.S. Environmental Protection Agency**

Indian Environmental General Assistance Program	.17
Children's Health Protection	.17
Consolidated Pesticide Enforcement Cooperative Agreements	.18
Environmental Justice Grants to Small Community Groups	.18

Great Lakes Program	
Brownfield Program	19
Leaking Underground Storage Tank Trust Fund Program	20
Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds	20
Clean Water Act Indian Set-Aside Grant Program (Wastewater)	21
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program	21
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission	
Employment Discrimination Project Contracts -Indian Tribes	23
Employment Discrimination - State and Local Fair Employment Practices Agency Contracts	23
Federal Emergency Management Agency	
Hazardous Materials Training Program for Implementation of the	
Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act (SARA) of 1986	25
General Services Administration	
Donation of Federal Surplus Personal Property	27
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services	
Improving the Capability of Indian Tribal Government to Regulate Environmental Quality	29
Native American Programs	29
Promote the Survival and Continuing Vitality of Native American Languages	30
Social Services Research and Demonstration	31
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families	32
Disabilities Prevention	32
Demonstration Projects for Indian Health	33
Epidemiology Cooperative Agreements	34
Health Professions Pre-graduate Scholarship Program for Indians	34
Health Professions Preparatory Scholarship Program for Indians	35
Health Professions Recruitment Program for Indians	35
Health Professions Scholarship Program	36
Indian Health Service - Health Management Development Program	36
Indian Health Service Research	36
Injury Prevention Program for American Indians and Alaskan Natives - Cooperative Agreements	37
Matching Grants for Health Professions Scholarships to Indian Tribes	37
Urban Indian Health Services	38
Bilingual/Bicultural Service Demonstration Projects in Minority Health	38
Minority Community Health Coalition Demonstration	39
Minority Biomedical Research Support	39
Technical Assistance and Capacity Development Demonstration Program	
HIV/AIDS - Related Services in Highly Impacted Minority Communities	40
Adolescent Family Life Research Grants	
American Indian/Native American Community Planning Program	
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse	
Circles of Care	41

Community Action Grants	42
Great Lakes Human Health Effects Research	42
Targeted Capacity Expansion Program	43
Youth Violence Prevention	43

### U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Community Development Block Grants/Special Purpose Grants/Technical Assistance Program	45
Community Development Block Grants/Economic Development Initiative	45
Indian Community Development Block Grant Program	46
Fair Housing Assistance Program - State and Local	46
Home Investment Partnerships Program	47
Public and Indian Housing Drug Elimination Program	47
Public and Indian Housing - Indian Loan Guarantee Program	48
Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services	48
Title VI Federal Guarantees for Financing Tribal Housing Activities	49
Alaska Native/Native Hawaiian Institutions Assisting Communities	49

### U.S. Department of the Interior

Administrative Cost Grants for Indian Schools
Agriculture on Indian Lands
Aid to Tribal Governments
Alaskan Indian Allotments and Subsistence Preference - Alaska National Interest Lands Conservation Act
Assistance for Indian Children with Severe Disabilities
Assistance to Tribally-Controlled Community College and Universities
Attorney's Fees - Indian Rights
Endangered Species on Indian Lands
Forestry on Indian Lands
Improvement and Repair of Indian Detention Facilities
Indian Adult Education
Indian Arts and Crafts Development
Indian Child and Family Education
Indian Child Welfare Act - Title II Grants
Indian Community Fire Protection
Indian Economic Development
Indian Education Facilities, Operations and Maintenance
Indian Education Assistance to Schools
Indian Education - Higher Education Grant Program
Indian Employment Assistance
Indian Graduate Student Scholarships
Indian Housing Assistance
Indian Law Enforcement
Indian Rights Protection
Indian Schools - Student Transportation
Indian Self-Determination Contract Support
Indian Social Services - General Assistance

Indian Vocational Training - United Tribes Technical College	.61
Irrigation Operations and Maintenance on Indian Lands	.61
Litigation Support for Indian Rights	.62
Tribal Courts	.62
Cooperative Inspection Agreements with States and Tribes	.62
American Battlefield Protection	.63
Fish and Wildlife Management Assistance	.63
Services to Indian Children, Elderly, and Families	.64

## The Morris K. Udall Scholarship and Excellence in National Environmental Policy Foundation

#### U.S. Department of Justice

Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program       .67         Tribal Court Assistance Program       .68         Correctional Facilities on Tribal Lands Discretionary Grant Program       .68         Technical Assistance for Violent Offender Incarceration and Truth-In-Sentencing       .68         Incarting Program on Facilities on Tribal Lands Discretionary Court Program       .69
Correctional Facilities on Tribal Lands Discretionary Grant Program
Technical Assistance for Violent Offender Incarceration and Truth-In-Sentencing
č
In continue Dreamon on Equilities on Tribel I and a Discontinuous Crowt Dreamon (0)
Incentive Program or Facilities on Tribal Lands Discretionary Grant Program
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants
Circles of Care
Tribal Youth Program
Tribal Youth Program-Mental Health Program
Children's Justice Act Partnerships for Indian Communities
Crime Victim Assistance/Discretionary Grants
Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies
Rural Domestic Violence and Child Victimization Enforcement Grant Program
Violence Against Women Formula Grants
Violence Against Women Discretionary Grants for Indian Tribal Governments

### **Small Business Administration**

8 (A) Business Development	t	77
----------------------------	---	----

### U.S. Department of Transportation

Airport Improvement Program	79
State and Community Highway Safety	79
Formula Grants for Other than Urbanized Areas	80
Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector Training and Planning Grants	80

### Appendices

Appendix A:	Indian Tribal Entities Within the Contiguous 48 States Recognized and Eligible to Receive Services from the United States Bureau of Indian Affairs
	Native Entities Within the State of Alaska Recognized and Eligible to Receive Services From the United States Bureau of Indian Affairs
Appendix C:	U.S. Department Websites
Appendix D:	Criminal Justice and Substance Abuse Resources, Information, and Technical Assistance99
Glossary	
Index	
User Feedback	Form

## **U.S. Department of Agriculture**

## **Tribal Colleges Education Equity Grants**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Higher Education Programs Science and Education Resources Development Cooperative State Research Education and Extension Service U.S. Department of Agriculture, Room 3912-S Washington, DC 20250-2251 Contact: Dr. Kevin Bacon Telephone: (202) 720-1973 www.reeusda.gov **Program Objective:** To enhance educational opportunities at the 30 Tribal Colleges designated as the 1994 Land-Grant Institutions by strengthening their teaching programs in the food and agricultural sciences in targeted need areas.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State (includes District of Columbia, public institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Local (includes state-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals).

Eligible Beneficiaries: (a) American Indian.

Type of Assistance: Formula Grants.

## **Tribal Colleges Endowment Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Higher Education Programs Science and Education Resources Development Cooperative State Research Education and Extension Service U.S. Department of Agriculture, Room 3912-S Washington, DC 20250-2251 Contact: Dr. Kevin Bacon Telephone: (202) 720-1973 www.reeusda.gov **Program Objective:** To establish an endowment for the 1994 Land-Grant Institutions (29 tribally controlled colleges). The program will enhance educational opportunities for Native Americans by strengthening instructional programs at these institutions in the areas of curricula development, student recruitment and retention, faculty preparation, instruction delivery systems, and equipment and instrumentation for teaching.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) The 29 Tribal Colleges specified as 1994 Land Grant Institutions by Public Law 103-382 (October 20, 1994).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) American Indian and those attending the 29 Tribal Colleges specified as 1994 Land Grant Institutions.

Type of Assistance: Formula Grants.

## **Indian Tribes And Tribal Corporation Loans**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Loan Making Division Farm Service Agency U.S. Department of Agriculture Ag Box 0522 Washington, DC 20250 Contact: Jerry Mosmen Telephone: (202) 690-4006 www.fsa.usda.gov **Program Objective:** To enable federally recognized Indian Tribes and tribal corporations to acquire land within tribal reservations and Alaskan communities.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a)Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

Eligible Beneficiaries: (a) American Indian.

Type of Assistance: Direct Loans.

## **Commodity Supplemental Food Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Food Distribution Division Food and Nutrition Service Department of Agriculture Alexandria, VA 22302 Contact: David Seger Telephone: (703) 305-2680 www.fns.usda.gov/fncs/ **Program Objective:** To improve the health of low-income pregnant and breast feeding women, other new mothers up to one year postpartum, infants, children up to age six, and elderly people at least 60 years of age by supplementing their diets with nutritious USDA commodity foods. To provide food and administrative funds to states to supplement the diets of these groups.

**Eligible Applicants:** Agreements are made between the Department and the state agency, or an Indian Tribe, band, or group recognized by the Department of the Interior for the administration of the program.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** To be certified as eligible to receive supplemental foods, each applicant must be: (a) Categorically eligible as an infant, child up to age 6, pregnant, postpartum or breast feeding woman, or elderly person 60 years of age or older, residing in an area where the program operates; (b) Women, infants, and children, income eligible under existing Federal, State, or local food, health, or welfare programs for low-income persons; elderly must have an annual income at or below 130 percent of Federal poverty income guidelines; and (c) At state agency discretion, at nutritional risk as determined by a competent health professional at the local agency.

**Type of Assistance:** Formula Grants; Sale, Exchange, or Donation of Property and Goods.

## **Food Distribution Program On Indian Reservations**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Food Distribution Division Food and Nutrition Service U.S. Department of Agriculture Alexandria, VA 22302 Contact: David Seger Telephone: (703) 305-2680 www.fns.usda.gov **Program Objective:** To improve the diets of needy persons in households on or near Indian reservations through the distribution of commodities.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Authorized Indian Tribal Organizations and state agencies designated by the governor, legislature, or other authority may receive and distribute donated foods. (Indian Tribal organizations may be their own state agency for the administration of the program on reservations if determined capable by FNS); (b) State agencies that administer the program are eligible to receive federal cash assistance (administrative funds) to assist in meeting operating expenses incurred in administering the program.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Households must be (a) living on an Indian reservation; or (b) be Indian households living in a designated area near an Indian reservation or in Indian country for Oklahoma and must be certified by local authorities as having inadequate income and resources. Upper limits of allowable income vary with family size. Household resources for all household sizes are set by FNS.

**Type of Assistance:** Project Grants; Sale, Exchange, or Donation of Property and Goods.

## **Environmental Quality Incentives Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Natural Resource Conservation Programs Natural Resources Conservation Service U.S. Department of Agriculture P.O. Box 2890 Washington, DC 20013 Contact: Deputy Chief, Natural Resources Conservation Programs Telephone: (202) 720-1845 www.nrcs.usda.gov **Program Objective:** To provide technical, educational, and financial assistance to eligible farmers and ranchers in order to address soil, water, and related natural resource concerns on their lands in an environmentally beneficial and cost-effective manner. This program provides assistance to farmers and ranchers in complying with federal, state, and tribal environmental laws, and encourages environmental enhancement. The purpose of this program is achieved through the implementation of structural, vegetative, and land management practices on eligible land. This program is funded through the Commodity Credit Corporation (CCC). NRCS provides overall program management and implementation leadership for conservation planning and implementation. The Farm Service Agency provides leadership for administrative processes and procedures for the program.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Individual/Family.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Individual/Family.

Type of Assistance: Direct Payments for Specified Use.

### **Forestry Incentives Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Natural Resources Conservation Service U.S. Department of Agriculture P.O. Box 2890 Washington, DC 20013 Telephone: (202) 720-1845 www.nrsc.usda.gov **Program Objective:** To bring private non-industrial forest land under intensified management, to increase timber production, to assure adequate supplies of timber, and to enhance other forest resources through a combination of public and private investments on the most productive sites on eligible individual or consolidated ownership of efficient size and operation.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Individual/Family; (c) Specialized group (e.g. health professionals, students, veterans); (d) Profit organization; (e) Other private institutions/organizations; (f) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Individual/Family; (c) Profit Organization; (d) Other private institution/organization; (e) Land/Property Owner.

Type of Assistance: Direct Payments for Specified Use.

## Small Farmer Outreach Training and Technical Assistance Program

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Secretary for Administration USDA Office of Outreach U.S. Department of Agriculture Ag STOP 1710 1400 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20250 Contact: Sherie Hinton Henry Telephone: (202) 720-6350 www.fsa.usda.gov **Program Objective:** To reverse the decline of socially disadvantaged farmers and ranchers. The intended outcome is to encourage and assist socially disadvantaged farmers and ranchers to own and operate farms, participate in agricultural programs, and become an integral part of the agricultural community.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) 1890 Land-Grant College, including Tuskegee University; Indian Tribal community colleges and Alaska native cooperative colleges; (b) Hispanic serving post-secondary educational institutions; and community-based organizations.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Farmer/Rancher/Agriculture Producer who is: (a) Black; (b) a Woman; (c) American Indian; (d) Alaskan Native; (e) Hispanic; (f) Asian; and (g) Pacific Islander.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### **Business and Industry Loans**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Rural Business-Cooperative Service U.S. Department of Agriculture Washington, DC 20250-3201 Telephone: (202) 690-4730 www.rurdev.usda.gov **Program Objective:** To assist public, private, or cooperative organizations (profit or nonprofit), Indian tribes or individuals in rural areas to obtain quality loans for the purpose of improving, developing or financing business, industry, and employment and improving the economic and environmental climate in rural communities including pollution abatement and control.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Local (includes State-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (c) Individual/Family; (d) Specialized group (e.g. health professionals, students, veterans); (e) Profit organization; (f) Private non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (g) Other private institutions/organizations.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Local; (b) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (c) Individual/Family; (d) Profit organization; (e) Private non-profit institution/organization; (f) Quasi-public non-profit organization; (g) American Indian; (h) U.S. Citizen; (i) Veteran/Service person/Reservist (including dependents); (j) Rural.

Type of Assistance: Direct Loans; Guaranteed/Insured Loans.

## **Technical Assistance and Training Grants\***

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Water and Waste Rural Utilities Service U.S. Department of Agriculture Washington, DC 20250 Telephone: (202) 690-2670 www.rurdev.usda.gov **Program Objective:** To identify and evaluate solutions to water and waste disposal problems in rural areas; to assist applicants in preparing applications made in accordance with 7 CFR 1780; to improve operation and maintenance of water and waste disposal facilities in rural areas.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Private non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Local; (b) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

## Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities

#### **Program/Agency Contact**

Water and Environmental Programs Rural Utilities Service U.S. Department of Agriculture Washington, DC 20250 Telephone: (202) 690-2670 www.rurdev.usda.gov **Program Objective:** To provide basic human amenities, alleviate health hazards, and promote the orderly growth of the rural areas of the nation by meeting the need for new and improved rural water and waste disposal facilities.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Local (includes State-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Sponsored organization; (c) Public non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (d) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (e) Specialized groups (e.g. health professionals, students, veterans); (f) Private non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (g) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Local; (b) Individual/Family; (c) Farmer/Rancher/Agriculture Producer; (d) American Indian; (e) Rural.

**Type of Assistance:** Project Grants; Direct Loans; Guaranteed/Insured Loans.

## **U.S. Department of Commerce**

## **Economic Adjustment Assistance**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Economic Adjustment Division Economic Development Administration Herbert C. Hoover Building, Room H7327 U.S. Department of Commerce Washington DC 20230 Contact: David F. Witschi, Director Telephone: (202) 482-2659 www.doc.gov/eda/ **Program Objective:** To assist state and local interests by designing and implementing strategies to adjust or bring about change to an economy. Program focuses on areas that have experienced or are under threat of serious structural damage to the underlying economic base. Such economic change may occur suddenly or over time, and generally results from industrial or corporate restructuring, new Federal laws or requirements, reduction in defense expenditures, depletion of natural resources, or natural disaster.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Interstate; (b) State (includes District of Columbia, public institutions of higher education and hospitals); (c) Local (includes State-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (d) Sponsored organization; (e) Public non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (f) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (g) Private non-profit institution/organization (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Interstate; (b) State; (c) Local; (d) Public nonprofit institutions/organizations; (e) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (f) Private non-profit institution/organization; (g) American Indian.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

## **Basic Minority Business Development Centers\***

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Field Coordination Division, Room 5079 Minority Business Development Agency U.S. Department of Commerce 14th and Constitution Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20230 Contact: Juanita E. Berry, Chief Telephone: (202) 482-6022 www.mbda.gov **Program Objective:** To provide electronic business development services for a nominal fee to minority firms and individuals interested in entering, expanding, or improving their efforts in the marketplace. Minority business development center operators provide a wide range of services to clients from initial consultations to the identification and resolution of specific business problems.

Eligible Applicants: (a) Anyone/general public.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Individual/Family; (b) Other private institution/organization; (c) Small Business Person; (d) Black; (e) American Indian; (f) Spanish Origin; (g) Asian; (h) Other Non-White.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants (Cooperative Agreements).

## **Minority Business Opportunity Committee Development**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Economic Adjustment Division Field Coordination Division, Room 5079 Minority Business Development Agency U.S. Department of Commerce 14th and Constitution Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20230 Contact: Juanita E. Berry, Chief Telephone: (202) 482-6022 www.mbda.gov **Program Objective:** To provide minority business owners with enhanced access to the marketplace by identifying marketing and sales opportunities, financing resources, potential joint venture partners, timely market leads, and other current business information; to promote relationship building and sharing of business information between organizations in a geographic service area conducting substantial purchasing activity; to assist in the identification of sources of equity capital such as capital funds and institutional investors; to conduct media outreach; to disseminate economic data; to sponsor workshops, conferences, and seminars within service area; to maintain inventories of various service providers such as banks, bonding companies, chambers of commerce and trade associations.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State (includes District of Columbia, public institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Local (includes State-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (c) Public non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (d) Private non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (e) Quasi-public non-profit institutions/organizations.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Minority group; (b) Black; (c) American Indian; (d) Spanish Origin; (e) Oriental; (f) Other Non-White.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants (Cooperative Agreements).

### **Native American Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Field Coordination Division, Room 5079 Minority Business Development Agency U.S. Department of Commerce 14th and Constitution Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20230 Contact: Juanita E. Berry, Chief Telephone: (202) 482-6022 www.mbda.gov **Program Objective:** To provide electronic business development service to Native Americans interested in entering, expanding or improving their efforts in the marketplace. To help Native American business development centers and Native American business consultants to provide a wide range of services to Native American clients from initial consultation to the identification and resolution of specific business problems.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Individual/Family; (b) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

Eligible Beneficiaries: (a) Individual/Family; (b) American Indian.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants (Cooperative Agreements).

## **Habitat Conservation**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Habitat Conservation 1315 East West Highway, FHC3 National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration U.S. Department of Commerce Silver Spring, MD 20910 Contact: Dr. Erik Zobrist Telephone: (301) 713-0174 www.noaa.gov Program Objective: To provide grants and cooperative agreements for biological, economic, sociological, public policy, and other research, administration, and public education projects on the coastal environment to benefit U.S. fisheries, conserve protected resources, and add to the economic and social well being of the Nation. Projects are funded to carry out public policy pertaining to protection and restoration of the Nation's wetlands and other coastal habitats, pursuant to the Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act, Magnuson Fishery Conservation and Management Act, Endangered Species Act, Marine Mammal Protection Act, Marine Plastic Pollution Research and Control Act of 1987, Coastal Wetlands Planning Protection and Research Act (CWPPRA) and other legislation. Research and management include determining the effects of habitat modifications and contaminants on populations of living marine resources, restoring depleted stocks that have been adversely impacted by habitat modifications, determining if artificial or restored habitat fulfills essential habitat needs of living marine resources, and quantifying contaminants and debris that pose a hazard to populations of these animals.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federal; (b) State (includes District of Columbia, public institutions of higher education and hospitals); (c) Other public institutions/organizations; (d) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (e) U.S. Territories and possessions (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (f) Other private institutions/organizations; (g) Anyone/general public.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federal; (b) State; (c) Other public institutions/organizations; (d) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (e) Other private institutions/organizations; (f) Anyone/general public.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants (Cooperative Agreements).

## **U.S. Department of Defense**

## Community Economic Adjustment Planning Assistance for Community Base Reuse Plans

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Economic Adjustment Office of the Secretary of Defense U.S. Department of Defense 400 Army Nave Drive, Suite 200 Arlington, VA 22202-2884 Telephone: (703) 604-6020 www.emissary.acq.osd.mil/oea/home.nsf **Program Objective:** To assist local governments or states, on behalf of local governments, to conduct community base reuse plans at closing or realigning military installations.

**Eligible Applicants:** An applicant may be eligible for DoD funding if the Secretary of Defense announced in 1988, 1992, 1993 or will announce in 1995 that the local military installation is a candidate for closure or realignment or that a final decision has been made that the installation will be closed or realigned; and that a community reuse plan is required for the DoD Environmental Impact Statement or Environmental Assessment. State or local governments, regional organizations composed of state and local organizations, and Federally Recognized Indian Tribes located within the 50 States, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and Guam are eligible if the above criteria are met.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Local governments; (b) States, on behalf of local governments, regional organizations composed of State and local governments; (c) Federally Recognized Indian Tribes that represent the impacted area.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

## **Growth Management Planning Assistance**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Economic Adjustment Office of the Secretary of Defense U.S. Department of Defense 400 Army Nave Drive, Suite 200 Arlington, VA 22202-2884 Telephone: (703) 604-6020 www.emissary.acq.osd.mil/oea/home.nsf **Program Objective:** To assist local government or states, on behalf of local governments, to undertake community economic adjustment planning activities to respond to military base opening or expansions.

**Eligible Applicants:** An applicant may be eligible for DoD funding if: (a) the establishment or expansion of a local military installation involves the assignment of more than 2,000 military, civilian, and DoD contractor personnel to a new or expanded installation; or the assignment of more military, civilian, and contractor DoD personnel that is equal to 10 percent of employment in counties or independent municipalities within 15 miles of the installation, whichever is the lesser; (b) the new or expanded installation will result in a direct and significantly adverse consequence on the affected community; and (c) other special impact assistance is not available. state or local organizations and Federally Recognized Indian Tribes located within the 50 States, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and Guam are eligible if the above criteria are met.

## **Growth Management Planning Assistance** (continued)

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) States, on behalf of local governments; (b) Regional organizations composed of state and local governments; (c) Federally Recognized Indian Tribes that represent the impacted area.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### Community Economic Adjustment Planning Assistance for Joint Land Use Studies\*

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Economic Adjustment Office of the Secretary of Defense Office of the Assistant Secretary (Economic Security) U.S. Department of Defense 400 Army Nave Drive, Suite 200 Arlington, VA 22202-2884 Telephone: (703) 604-5948 www.emissary.acq.osd.mil/oea/home.nsf **Program Objective:** To enable the Army, Navy, Air Force, and Marine Corps to participate in the development and implementation of "Joint Land Use Studies." The studies will be used to identify land use measures needed to ensure that further public and private development around a military installation is compatible with both the mission of the military installation and the plans of the jurisdiction(s) responsible for the land surrounding the installation. The grantee(s) or participating government(s) are expected to adopt and implement the study recommendations.

**Eligible Applicants:** An applicant may be eligible for DoD funding for Joint Land Use Studies if the Secretary of Defense determines that encroachment of the civilian community on a military installation is likely to impair the continued operation utility of the military installation. Planning activities considered eligible for study are (a) the impacts of community development on the installation; and (b) the impacts of planned changes in the activities of the installation on the surrounding community(ies). Joint Land Use Studies will be initiated by DoD and accomplished by the grantee in cooperation with the appropriate Military Department. Information such as installation master plans, noise contours and accident potential zones, which may be necessary for the development of the Joint Land Use Study, normally will be available from the Military Department.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) State and local governments; (b) Regional organizations composed of state and local governments; (c) Federally Recognized Indian Tribes.

## **Community Economic Adjustment Planning Assistance**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Economic Adjustment Office of the Secretary of Defense Office of the Assistant Secretary (Economic Security) U.S. Department of Defense 400 Army Nave Drive, Suite 200 Arlington, VA 22202-2884 Telephone: (703) 604-5948 www.emissary.acq.osd.mil/oea/home.nsf **Program Objective:** To assist local governments or states, on behalf of local governments, to undertake community economic adjustment planning activities to respond to military base closures and re-alignments.

**Eligible Applicants:** An applicant may be eligible for DoD funding if the Secretary of Defense has announced that the local military installation is a candidate for closure or realignment; or that a final decision has been made that the installation will be closed or realigned; and the Director, OEA, has determined that the action will result in a direct and significantly adverse consequence to the affected community. (a) State or local governments, regional organizations composed of state or local governments, and Federally Recognized Indian Tribes, District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and Guam are eligible if the above criteria are met.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) States on behalf of local governments; (b) Local governments; (c) Regional organizations composed of state and local governments; (d) Federally Recognized Indian Tribes.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### Community Economic Adjustment Planning Assistance for Reductions in Defense Industry Employment

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Economic Adjustment 400 Army Navy Drive, Suite 200 Arlington, VA 22202-2884 Telephone: (703)604-5948 www.emissary.acq.osd.mil/oea/home.nsf **Program Objective:** To assist states on behalf of local governments and local governments to undertake economic adjustment planning activities to respond to major reductions in defense industry employment resulting from the cancellation, termination, or failure to proceed with a major DoD acquisition.

**Eligible Applicants:** An applicant may be eligible for DoD funding Defense industry adjusting planning if the cancellation, termination, or failure to proceed with a major weapons system involves the loss of a) 2,500 or more full-time contractor employee positions in a metropolitan statistical area (MSA); b) 1,000 or more jobs in a labor market area outside an MSA; and c) one percent of the total number of civilian jobs in that area. Additionally, the Secretary of Defense must make a determination that the action is likely to impose a direct and significantly adverse consequence. States on behalf of local governments or local government, and Federally Recognized Indian Tribes located within the 50 States, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and Guam are eligible if the above criteria are met.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) States on behalf of local governments; (b) Regional organizations composed of state and local governments; (c) Federally Recognized Indian Tribes that represent the impacted area.

## **U.S. Department of Education**

## **Even Start - Indian Tribes and Tribal Organizations**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Compensatory Education Programs Office of Elementary and Secondary Education U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202 Contact: Doris Sligh Telephone: (202) 260-0999 www.ed.gov **Program Objective:** To help break the cycle of poverty and illiteracy and improve the educational opportunities of low-income families through family literacy programs that integrate early childhood education, adult basic education, and parenting education.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Native American Organizations; (b) Student/Trainee; (c) American Indian; (d) Preschool.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants (Discretionary).

## Indian Education - Grants to Local Educational Agencies

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Indian Education Office of Elementary and Secondary Education U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202 Contact: Cathie Martin Telephone: (202) 260-3774 www.ed.gov **Program Objective:** To support local educational agencies in their efforts to reform elementary and secondary school programs that serve Indian students. To ensure that programs are based on challenging state content standards and student performance standards that are used for all students and are designed to assist Indian students meet those standards in reaching the National Education Goals.

**Eligible Applicants:** Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) that enroll at least 10 Indian children or in which Indians constitute at least 25 percent of the total enrollment. These requirements do not apply to LEAs serving Indian children in Alaska, California, and Oklahoma or located on, or in proximity to, an Indian reservation. Schools that receive funding from the Bureau of Indian Affairs under Section 1130 of the Education Amendments of 1978, 25 U.S.C. 2001, are deemed to be eligible to participate in this program.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Eligible Indian children enrolled in eligible local educational agencies; (b) BIA funded schools.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants; Formula Grants.

## **Minority Science and Engineering Improvement\***

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Institutional Development and Undergraduate Education Service Office of Postsecondary Education U.S. Department of Education Washington, DC 20202-5251 Contact: Deborah C. Newkirk Telephone: (202) 502-7777 www.ed.gov **Program Objective:** To effect long-range improvement in science and engineering education at predominantly minority institutions. To increase the participation of under-represented ethnic minorities, particularly minority women, in scientific and technological careers.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Public non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) U.S. Territories and possessions (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (c) Minority Group; (d) Private non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Private or public accredited 4-year institutions of higher education whose total enrollments are predominantly (50 percent or more) American Indian; Alaskan Native; Black, not of Hispanic origin; Hispanic (including persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, and Central or South American origin); Pacific Islander; or any combination of these or other ethnic minorities who are under-represented in science and engineering. (b) Also, 2- year private or public accredited minority (see description of minority above) institutions that have curricula in science or engineering and have formed a partnership with a 4-year institution.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

## **Rehabilitation Services - American Indians with Disabilities**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Rehabilitation Services Administration Office of the Assistant Secretary for Special Education and Rehabilitative Services U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202 Contact: Thomas Finch Telephone: (202) 205-8292 www.ed.gov **Program Objective:** To provide vocational rehabilitation services to American Indians with disabilities that reside on federal or state reservations in order to prepare them for suitable employment.

**Eligible Applicants:** Governing bodies of Indian Tribes or consortia of those governing bodies on federal and state reservations may apply.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** American Indians with disabilities residing on a federal or state reservation (including Native Alaskans) and meet the definition of an individual with a disability in Section 7 (8) (A) of the Rehabilitation Act.

## **U.S. Environmental Protection Agency**

## Indian Environmental General Assistance Program

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

American Indian Environmental Office (4104) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Ariel Rios Building 1200 Pennsylvania Ave., NW Washington, DC 20460 Telephone: (202) 260- 7939 www.epa.gov/indian/gap2000.pdf **Program Objective:** To provide general assistance grants (GAP) to Indian tribal governments and intertribal consortia to build capacity to administer environmental regulatory programs on Indian lands; and provide technical assistance from EPA to Indian tribal governments and intertribal consortia in the development of multimedia programs to address environmental issues on Indian lands.

**Eligible Applicants:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Inter-Tribal Consortia with a majority membership of federally recognized Tribes.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants and Cooperative Agreements.

### **Children's Health Protection**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Children's Health Protection Office of Administration U.S. Environmental Protection Agency MC 1107 Washington, DC 20460 Contact: Ramona Trovato, Director www.epa.gov **Program Objective:** To catalyze community-based and regional projects and other actions that enhance public outreach and communication; assist families in evaluating risks to children and in making informed consumer choices; build partnerships that increase a community's long-term capacity to advance protection of children's environmental health and safety; leverage private and public investments to enhance environmental quality by enabling community efforts to continue past EPA's ability to provide assistance to communities; and promote protection of children from environmental threats through lessons learned.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Local (includes state-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Public non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (c) Profit organization; (d) Private non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) State, Tribal, Local and Municipal Governments; (b) Communities; (c) The General Public.

## Consolidated Pesticide Enforcement Cooperative Agreements

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office Of Compliance Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance (2222A) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, DC 20460 Contact: John Neylan Telephone: (202) 564-5033 www.epa.gov **Program Objective:** To assist states, territories and possessions of the U.S., including the District of Columbia and Indian Tribes, in developing and maintaining comprehensive pesticide programs that address all aspects of pesticide enforcement, and special pesticide initiatives. To sponsor cooperative surveillance, monitoring and analytical procedures; and encourage regulatory activities within the States.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State (includes District of Columbia, public institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (c) U.S. Territories and Possessions (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) State; (b) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (c) U.S. Territories; (d) American Indian.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants (Cooperative Agreements).

## **Environmental Justice Grants to Small Community Groups**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Environmental Justice (2201A) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 1200 Pennsylvania Ave, NW Washington, DC 20460 Telephone: (202) 564-2515 www.epa.gov/oeca/oej/grlink1.html **Program Objective:** To provide financial assistance to grass roots community-based groups to support projects which design, demonstrate or disseminate practices, methods or techniques related to environmental justice. Specifically, EPA will grant funding assistance to be used for 1. environmental justice education and awareness programs; 2. environmental Justice Programs (for example, river monitoring and pollution prevention programs); 3. technical assistance in gathering and interpreting existing environmental justice data; and 4. technical assistance to access available public information.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Local (includes state-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Public non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (c) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (d) Private non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (e) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Public nonprofit institutions/organizations; (b) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (c) Anyone/general public.

## **Great Lakes Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Great Lakes National Program Office (G-17J) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 77 West Jackson Boulevard Chicago, IL 60604-3590 Contact: Mike Russ Telephone: 312-886-4013 www.cpa.gov/glnpo/fund/glf.html

## **Brownfield Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Outreach and Special Projects Staff Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, DC 20460 Contact: Linda Garczynski, Director Telephone: (202) 260-4039 www.epa.gov **Program Objective:** To restore and maintain the chemical, physical, and biological integrity of the Great Lakes Basin Ecosystem. The Great Lakes National Program Office (GLNPO), in concert with Regions 2, 3, and 5, leads a consortium of programs, agencies, and public and private institutions to reduce the level of toxic substances in the Great Lakes; protecting and restoring vital habitats; and protecting human health and restoring and maintaining stable, diverse and self-sustaining populations. These joint objectives were established in the Great Lakes Five Year Strategy (developed by EPA in conjunction with other Federal, state, and Tribal agencies) to attain the Great Lakes Water Quality Agreement goal of restoring the chemical, physical, and biological integrity of the waters of the Great Lakes Basin Ecosystem.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State water pollution control agencies; (b) Interstate agencies; (c) Other public or nonprofit private agencies; (d) Institutions; (e) Organizations; (f) Individuals.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) State; (b) Local; (c) Public nonprofit institutions/organizations; (d) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (e) Individual/Family.

**Type of Assistance:** Project Grants (Cooperative Agreements); Use of Property, Facilities, and Equipment; Provision of Specialized Services; Dissemination of Technical Information. Grants and cooperative agreements are awarded for contaminated sediment assessment, pollution prevention, habitat protection and restoration, assessment and indicators pursuant to the Lake Michigan Mass Balance Study, contaminant monitoring of Lake and tributary waters and biota, and information management projects.

**Program Objective:** To provide grants and technical support to help local efforts to assess, clean up and reuse brownfields. Brownfields are former industrial and commercial properties where reuse is complicated by real or perceived environmental contamination.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State (includes District of Columbia, public institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Local (includes state-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (c) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (d) U.S. Territories and possessions (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) State; (b) Local; (c) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (d) U.S. Territories.

**Type of Assistance:** Project Grants (Cooperative Agreements) for assessment, establish cleanup revolving loan funds, and provide Brownfields job training.

## Leaking Underground Storage Tank Trust Fund Program

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Immediate Office Office of Underground Storage Tanks Environmental Protection Agency 1200 Pennsylvania Ave., NW., (5401G), Washington, DC 20460 Contact: Lynn DePont Telephone: (703) 603-7148 www.epa.gov/oust **Program Objective:** To support state and Tribal corrective action and enforcement programs that address releases from underground storage tanks containing petroleum.

**Eligible Applicants:** State governments that have demonstrated the capability to undertake effective corrective actions and enforcement activities and that have entered into a cooperative agreement with EPA describing the state's uses of the Fund. Indian Tribes must have sufficient underground storage tank population and interest in developing and implementing the leaking underground storage tank (LUST) program.

Eligible Beneficiaries: General Public and Indian Nations.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

## **Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

State Revolving Fund Branch Municipal Support Division, (4204) Office of Wastewater Management Environmental Protection Agency Washington, DC 20460 Contact: Shelia Platt Telephone: (202) 564-0686 www.epa.gov/owm **Program Objective:** To create State Revolving Funds (SRFs) through a program of capitalization grants to states which will provide a long term source of state financing for construction of wastewater treatment facilities and implementation of other water quality management activities (see 66.418).

**Eligible Applicants:** States and Puerto Rico are eligible to receive capitalization grants under Title VI. The District of Columbia, territories, possessions of the U.S. and Indian Tribes are eligible to receive grants from Title VI for the construction of municipal wastewater facilities.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** For loans and other financial assistance (but not grants) for wastewater treatment facilities, local communities, inter-municipal, state, interstate agencies, and Indian Tribes. For non-point source management programs and estuary activities in approved state Non-point Source Management Programs and Comprehensive Conservation and Management Plans - the above public agencies and individuals if specified in the approved plans and programs.

Type of Assistance: Formula Grants.

## Clean Water Act Indian Set-Aside Grant Program (Wastewater)

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Wastewater Management (4204M) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 1200 Pennsylvania Ave., NW Washington, DC 20460 Contact: Sylvia Bell Telephone: (202) 564-0621 **Program Objective:** To assist Indian Tribes and Alaska Native villages in planning, designing, and building wastewater systems. EPA and the Indian Health Service (IHS) are working together to administer the program. This partnership makes the most out of the technical resources of both agencies. The Program uses the IHS Sanitation Deficiency System (SDS) to identify priority wastewater projects for EPA grant funding. Grants cover most of the costs of planning, designing, and building a wastewater treatment system.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribes with control over reservation lands; (b) Alaska Native villages; and (c) Tribes on former reservations in Oklahoma.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribes; (b) Alaska Natives; and (c) Tribes on former reservations in Oklahoma.

Type of Assistance: Grants.

### **Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Infrastructure Branch (4606) Drinking Water Protection Division Office of Groundwater and Drinking Water U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 1200 Pennsylvania Ave., NW Washington, DC 20460 Contact: Veronica Blette Telephone: (202) 260-3980 www.epa.gov/safewater/dwsrf.html **Program Objective:** To create Drinking Water State Revolving Funds (DWSRFs) through a program of capitalization grants to states which will provide a long-term source of state financing for the costs of infrastructure needed to achieve or maintain compliance with SDWA requirements, and to protect public health. A state may also use the Federal funds to fund programs that emphasize preventing contamination problems through source water protection and enhanced water systems management.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) States and Puerto Rico are eligible to receive capitalization grants. (b) The District of Columbia, Territories, and Indian Tribes are eligible for direct grants from the program.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** For loans and other financial assistance for drinking water systems that are publicly and privately owned community drinking water systems and non-profit non-community drinking water systems. Indian Tribes and Alaska Native Villages are eligible to receive funding through state DWSRF programs.

**Type of Assistance:** Federal Formula Grants to states, Loans, and Technical Assistance.

## Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

## Employment Discrimination Project Contracts - Indian Tribes

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

State and Local Programs Office of Field Programs Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 1801 L Street NW, Room 8030 Washington, DC 20507 Contact: Michael J. Dougherty, Director Telephone: (202) 663-4944 www.eeoc.gov **Program Objective:** To insure the protection of employment rights of Indians working on or near reservations.

**Eligible Applicants:** Must be a federally registered, land based American Indian Tribe that has a tribal employment rights office (TEROs) established under an ordinance passed by the tribal council. The office must have a sitting director.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** American Indians employed or seeking employment on or near reservations.

**Type of Assistance:** Direct Payments to TEROs under contract with the EEOC.

### Employment Discrimination - State and Local Fair Employment Practices Agency Contracts\*

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

State and Local Programs Office of Field Programs Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 1801 L Street NW, Room 8030 Washington, DC 20507 Contact: Michael J. Dougherty, Director Telephone: (202) 663-4944 www.eeoc.gov **Program Objective:** To assist EEOC in the enforcement of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 by investigating and resolving charges of employment discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, and/or disability.

**Eligible Applicants:** Official state and local government agencies charged with the administration and enforcement of state or local fair employment practices law, where there exists an appropriate law (state or local) authorizing the agency to grant or seek relief from unlawful employment practices. Eligibility also requires formal designation by the EEOC as a Fair Employment Practices Agency (FEPA). Local agencies requesting a contract for the first time are subject to additional considerations.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Employees, potential employees and former employees covered by Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended, the Age Discrimination Act of 1967, and/or the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

**Type of Assistance:** Direct Payments to FEPAs under contract with the EEOC.

## Federal Emergency Management Agency

### Hazardous Materials Training Program for Implementation of the Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act (SARA) of 1986

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Partnerships and Outreach Division Preparedness, Training, and Exercises Directorate Federal Emergency Management Agency Washington, DC 20472 Contact: Maria Younker Telephone: (202) 646-2672 www.FEMA.gov **Program Objective:** To make funding available to provide training in support of Tribal governments emergency planning, preparedness, mitigation, response, and recovery capabilities. These programs must provide special emphasis on emergencies associated with hazardous chemicals.

**Eligible Applicants:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Local; (b) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (c) U.S. Territories; (d) Anyone/general public.

## **General Services Administration**

## **Donation of Federal Surplus Personal Property\***

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Property Management Division Office of Transportation and Property Management Federal Supply Service General Services Administration Washington, DC 20406 Telephone: (703) 305-7240 www.fss.gsa.gov **Program Objective:** To donate federal surplus property to qualifying public organizations such as airports, educational activities, and state and local government agencies, as well as nonprofit organization throughout the State Agencies for Surplus Property (SASP) for educational and public health purposes.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Public Agencies; and (b) Nonprofit Taxexempt Activities.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Medical Institutions; (b) Hospitals; (c) Clinics; (d) Health Centers; (e) Providers of assistance to homeless individuals; (f) Schools; (g) Colleges; (h) Universities; (i) Schools for the mentally retarded; (j) Schools for the physically handicapped; (k) Child Care Centers; (l) Radio & Television stations licensed by the Federal Communications Commission as educational radio or television stations; (m) Public Museums; (n) Public Libraries; (o) Organizations/institutions receiving funds appropriated for older individuals under the Older Americans Act of 1965.

**Type of Assistance:** Donation of federal surplus personal property (fire trucks, ambulances, medical equipment, cranes, bulldozers, road graders, computers, scientific equipment, food, clothing, bedding, aircraft, and boats) for educational and public health purposes.

## U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

## Improving the Capability of Indian Tribal Government to Regulate Environmental Quality

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Administration for Native Americans U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW, Room 348-F Washington, DC 20447 Contact: Jeanette Clyburn Telephone: (202) 690-6326 www.acf.dhhs.gov/programs/dts Program Objective: To provide financial assistance to advance tribal capacity and capability to plan for, develop, and implement enhancements to tribal environmental regulatory infrastructure required to support a tribal environmental program and to regulate and enforce environmental activities on Indian lands; to develop regulations, ordinances and laws to protect the environment; to develop the technical and program capacity to carry out a comprehensive tribal environmental program and perform essential environmental program functions; to promote training and education of tribal employees; to develop technical and program capability to meet tribal and Federal regulatory requirements; to develop technical and program capability to monitor compliance and enforcement of tribal environmental regulations, ordinances, and laws; and to ensure the tribal court system enforcement requirements are developed in concert with and support the tribe's comprehensive environmental program.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations; (c) Alaska Native Villages as defined in ANCSA; (d) incorporated non-federally recognized tribes.

Eligible Beneficiaries: American Indians and Alaska Natives.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

## **Native American Programs**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Administration for Native Americans U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW, Mail Stop HHH 348-F Washington, DC 20447 Contact: Jean Luka Telephone: (202) 690-6324 www.acf.dhhs.gov/programs/ana/ **Program Objective:** To provide financial assistance, training and technical assistance, and research, demonstration and evaluation activities to public and private nonprofit organizations including Indian Tribes, urban Indian centers, Alaska Native villages, Native Hawaiian organizations, rural off-reservation groups, and Native American Pacific Island groups for the development and implementation of social and economic development strategies that promote self-sufficiency. These projects are expected to result in improved social and economic conditions of Native Americans within their communities and to increase the effectiveness of Indian Tribes and Native American organizations in meeting their economic and social goals. Additional competitive areas include 1) Environmental Regulatory Enhancement, designed to assist Tribal and Alaska Village governments in developing environmental programs

### **Native American Programs (continued)**

**Program Objective (continued):** responsive to tribal needs; and 2) Native Languages Preservation and Enhancement, a program to assist Native American tribes and communities in ensuring the survival and continued vitality of their languages.

Eligible Applicants: Federally Recognized Indian Tribes; Consortia of Indian Tribes; Incorporated non-federally recognized Tribes; Incorporated nonprofit multi-purpose community-based Indian organizations; Urban Indian Centers; National or regional incorporated nonprofit Native American; organizations with Native American community-specific objectives; Alaska Native villages as defined in the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act (ANCSA) and/or nonprofit village consortia; Incorporated nonprofit Alaska Native multi-purpose community-based organizations; Nonprofit Alaska Native Regional Corporations/Associations in Alaska with village specific projects; Public and nonprofit private agencies serving Native Hawaiians (the populations served may be located on these islands or on the continental United States); Public and nonprofit private agencies serving native peoples from Guam, American Samoa, the Republic of Palau, or the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands. (the populations served may be located on these islands or on the continental United States); and Tribally controlled community colleges, Tribally controlled post-secondary vocational institutions, and colleges and universities located in Hawaii, Guam, American Samoa, Palau, or the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands which serve Native American Pacific Islanders. Non-profit Alaska Native community entities or tribal governing bodies (Indian Reorganization Act or traditional councils) as recognized by the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Native American Indians; (b) Alaska Natives; (c)Native Hawaiians; (d) American Pacific Islanders.

Type of Assistance: Direct Loans; Project Grants.

## Promote the Survival and Continuing Vitality of Native American Languages

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Administration for Native Americans U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Mail Stop HHH 348-F Washington, DC 20447 Contact: Sheila Cooper Telephone: (202) 690-5787 www.acf.dhhs.gov/programs/ana **Program Objective:** To provide financial assistance to eligible applicants for the purpose of assisting Native Americans in assuring the survival and continuing vitality of their languages. Grants are provided under the following two categories: Category I Planning Grants are limited to 12 months and are used to conduct the assessment and planning needed to identify the current status of the Native American language(s) to be addressed and to establish community long-range language goals; Category II Design and/or Implementation Grants are limited to 36 months

## Promote the Survival and Continuing Vitality of Native American Languages (continued)

**Program Objective (continued):** and allow communities to design and/or implement a language program or programs that will contribute to the achievement of the community's long-range language goal(s), and to accommodate where the Tribe or community is in its long-term language goals continuum.

Eligible Applicants: Federally Recognized Indian Tribes; Consortia of Indian Tribes; Incorporated non-federally recognized Tribes; Incorporated nonprofit multi-purpose community-based Indian organizations; Urban Indian Centers; National or regional incorporated nonprofit Native American; organizations with Native American community-specific objectives; Alaska Native villages as defined in the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act (ANCSA) and/or nonprofit village consortia; Incorporated nonprofit Alaska Native multi-purpose community-based organizations; Nonprofit Alaska Native Regional Corporations/Associations in Alaska with village specific projects; Public and nonprofit private agencies serving Native Hawaiians (the populations served may be located on these islands or on the continental United States); Public and nonprofit private agencies serving native peoples from Guam, American Samoa, the Republic of Palau, or the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands. (the populations served may be located on these islands or on the continental United States); and Tribally controlled community colleges, Tribally controlled post-secondary vocational institutions, and colleges and universities located in Hawaii, Guam, American Samoa, Palau, or the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands which serve Native American Pacific Islanders. Non-profit Alaska Native community entities or tribal governing bodies (Indian Reorganization Act or traditional councils) as recognized by the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Native American Indians; (b) Alaska Natives; (c) Native Hawaiians; (d) American Pacific Islanders.

Type of Assistance: Grants.

## **Social Services Research and Demonstration**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Planning, Research and Evaluation, Administration for Children and Families, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 7th Floor, 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Contact: Dr. K.A. Jagannathan Telephone: (202) 205-4829 **Program Objective:** To promote the ability of families to be financially self-sufficient, and to promote the healthy development and greater social well-being of children and families.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State (includes District of Columbia, public institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Public non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (c) Profit organization; (d) Private non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals);

## Social Services Research and Demonstration (continued)

**Eligible Applicants (continued):** (e) Quasi-public non-profit institutions/organizations; (f) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Infant (0-5); (b) Child (6-15); (c) Youth (16-21); (d) Welfare Recipient; (e) Low Income; (f) American Indian; (g) Handicapped (e.g. Deaf, Blind, Crippled).

**Type of Assistance:** Project Grants; Project Grants (Cooperative Agreements); Project Grants (Contracts.)

## **Temporary Assistance for Needy Families**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of the Director Office of Community Services Administration for Children and Families U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW 5th Floor, Aerospace Building Washington, DC 20447 www.acf.dhhs.gov/programs/dts **Program Objective:** To provide assistance to needy families with children so that children can be cared for in their own homes; to reduce dependency by promoting job preparation, work, and marriage; to reduce and prevent out-of-wedlock pregnancies; and to encourage the formation and maintenance of two-parent families.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State (includes District of Columbia, public institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Local (includes state-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (c) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) State; (b) Local; (c) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

Type of Assistance: Formula Grants.

## **Disabilities Prevention**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Disability and Health Branch National Center for Environmental Health Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 4770 Buford Highway, Building 101, Mailstop (F-29) Atlanta, GA 30341 Contact: Joseph B. Smith Telephone: (770) 488-7082 www.cdc.gov **Program Objective:** To provide a national focus for the prevention of secondary conditions in persons within selected disability domains including mobility, personal care, communication, and learning. To build state capacity to coordinate program activities and assess the magnitude of disability in states. To employ epidemiological methods to set priorities and direct health promotion interventions for persons with disabilities. To conduct research projects to understand secondary conditions and measure the impact of the environment on the lives of persons with disabilities, and conduct studies on the effectiveness of interventions in targeted groups of persons with disabilities. To support a national limb loss information center and limb loss research; and support a national information center on physical activity for persons with disabilities.

## **Disabilities Prevention (continued)**

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State (includes District of Columbia, public institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Local (includes state-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (c) Public non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (d) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (e) Private non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) State; (b) Local; (c) Public nonprofit institutions/organizations; (d) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (e) Individual/Family; (f) Private non-profit institutions/organizations.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### **Demonstration Projects for Indian Health**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Managed Care Indian Health Service U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Parklawn Bldg., Room 6A-55 5600 Fishers Lane Rockville, MD 20857 Contact: Ms. Lahoma Roebuck, Management Analyst Telephone: (301) 443-3024 www.ihs.gov **Program Objective:** To promote improved health care among American Indians and Alaska Natives through research studies and demonstration projects, addressing such issues as Elder Care, Women's Health Care, and Child Protection and Child Abuse Prevention.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State (includes District of Columbia, public institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Local (includes state-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (c) Public non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (d) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (e) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations); (f) Private non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals).

Eligible Beneficiaries: (a) American Indian.

## **Epidemiology Cooperative Agreements**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

National Epidemiology Program Indian Health Service U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 5300 Homestead Road, NE Albuquerque, NM 87110 Contact: Dr. James Cheek Telephone: (505)248-4226 www.ihs.gov **Program Objective:** To develop epidemiology centers and public health infrastructure through the augmentation of existing programs with expertise in epidemiology and a history of regional support. Activities should include, but not be limited to, development of surveillance for disease conditions, epidemiological analysis, interpretation, and dissemination of surveillance data, investigation of disease outbreaks, development and implementation of epidemiological studies, development and implementation of disease control and prevention programs, and coordination of activities with other public health authorities in the region. Proposed activities which cover large population and/or geographical areas that do not necessarily correspond with current Indian Health Service (IHS) administrative areas are encouraged.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Local (includes State-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (c) Minority Groups; (d) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized American Indian and Alaskan Native Tribal Governments; (b) Consortia of American Indian/Alaskan Native Tribes; (c) Tribal Health Boards.

Type of Assistance: Cooperative Agreements.

## Health Professions Pre-graduate Scholarship Program for Indians

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

IHS Scholarship Program Indian Health Service U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Twinbrook Metro Plaza, Suite 100A 12300 Twinbrook Parkway Rockville, MD 20852 Contact: Rose Jerue Telephone: (301) 443-6197 www.hhs.gov **Program Objective:** To provide scholarships to American Indians and Alaska Natives for the purpose of completing pre-graduate education leading to a baccalaureate degree only in the following areas: (1) pre-medicine: priority as follows: senior, junior, sophomore, freshman; (2) pre-dentistry: priority as follows: senior, junior, sophomore, freshman.

**Eligible Applicants:** Individuals of American Indian or Alaska Native descent, who have successfully completed high school education or high school equivalency, and have been accepted for enrollment or are enrolled in an accredited pre-graduate program in a pre-medicine or pre-dentistry curriculum.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Individuals of American Indian or Alaska Native descent.

### Health Professions Preparatory Scholarship Program for Indians

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Scholarship Branch Division of Health Professions Support Indian Health Service U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Twinbrook Metro Plaza, Suite 100A 12300 Twinbrook Parkway Rockville, MD 20852 Contact: Rose Jerue Telephone: (301) 443-6197 www.ihs.gov **Program Objective:** To make scholarships to American Indians and Alaska Natives for the purpose of completing compensatory pre-professional education to enable the recipient to qualify for enrollment or re-enrollment in a health professions school or curriculum.

Eligible Applicants: (a) Individual.

Eligible Beneficiaries: (a) American Indian.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### **Health Professions Recruitment Program for Indians**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division of Health Professions Support Indian Health Service U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Twinbrook Metro Plaza, Suite 100A 12300 Twinbrook Parkway Rockville, MD 20852 Contact: Rose Jerue Telephone: (301) 443-6197 www.ihs.gov **Program Objective:** To identify American Indians and Alaska Natives with a potential for education or training in the health professions, and to encourage and assist them to enroll in health or allied health professional schools; to increase the number of nurses, nurse midwives, nurse practitioners and nurse anesthetists who deliver health care services to American Indians and Alaska Natives; and to place health professional residents for short-term assignments at Indian Health Service (IHS) facilities as a recruitment aid.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Local (includes state-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Public non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (c) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (d) Minority groups; (e) Private non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (f) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

Eligible Beneficiaries: (a) American Indian.

### **Health Professions Scholarship Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

IHS Scholarship Program Division of Health Professions Support Indian Health Service U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Twinbrook Metro Plaza, Suite 100A 12300 Twinbrook Parkway Rockville, MD 20852 Contact: Rose Jerue Telephone: (301) 443-6197 www.ihs.gov **Program Objective:** To provide scholarships to American Indians and Alaska Natives at health professions schools in order to obtain health professionals to serve Indians. Upon completion, scholarship recipients are obligated to serve in the Indian Health Service or an Indian health organization for each year of support with a minimum of two years.

Eligible Applicants: (a) Individual.

Eligible Beneficiaries: (a) Individual; (b) American Indian.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

# Indian Health Service - Health Management Development Program

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Management Support Indian Health Service U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Parklawn Bldg., Room 6-39 5600 Fishers Lane Rockville, MD 20857 Contact: Ms. Deanna Dick, Program Analyst Telephone: (301) 443-6290 www.ihs.gov **Program Objective:** To improve the quality of the health of American Indians and Alaska Natives by providing a full range of curative, preventive, and rehabilitative health services; and to improve the management capability of American Indians and Alaska Natives to assume operation of all or part of an existing Indian Health Service (IHS) direct-operated health care program.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Individual/Family; (b) American Indian; (c) Minority group.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### **Indian Health Service Research**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Indian Health Service Research Program, Headquarters West 5300 Homestead Road, NE Albuquerque, NM 87110 Contact: Dr. William Freeman, Program Coordinator Telephone: (505) 248-4141 www.ihs.gov **Program Objective:** To conduct research and developmental activities in areas of Indian health care which further the performance of health responsibilities of the Indian Health Service.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Specialized group (e.g. health professionals, students, veterans); (c) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations; (c) American Indian.

### Injury Prevention Program for American Indians and Alaskan Natives - Cooperative Agreements

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Indian Health Service Research Program, Headquarters West 5300 Homestead Road, NE Albuquerque, NM 87110 Contact: Dr. William Freeman, Program Coordinator Telephone: (505) 248-4141 www.ihs.gov **Program Objective:** To improve the quality of the health of American Indians and Alaska Natives by providing a full range of injury preventive health services.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federal; (b) American Indian; (c) Native American Organizations.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

# Matching Grants for Health Professions Scholarships to Indian Tribes

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Scholarships Branch Indian Health Service U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Twinbrook Metro Plaza, Suite 100A 12300 Twinbrook Parkway Rockville, MD 20852 Contact: Rose Jerue, Chief Telephone: (301) 443-6197 www.ihs.gov **Program Objective:** To provide scholarships to Indians for health professions education through Indian Tribes and tribal organizations. Scholarships must be for health careers listed in the current fiscal year Federal Register Notice for the Indian Health Professions Scholarship Program. Related objectives of the program are the proper administration of a project, selection of scholarship recipients by fair and consistent means, monitoring of recipients to assure compliance with scholarship requirements, and eventual job placement within the service area of the grantee organization to fulfill service obligation. One of the monitoring objectives is assuring satisfactory academic performance which is defined as (1) a 2.0 grade point average (GPA); (2) the GPA required by the college/university; or (3) a 3.0 GPA for most graduate level programs. A project awarded under this program will be by a grant to the tribe or tribal organization.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Tribal organizations; (c) and urban Indian organizations may apply.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Individuals who are members of (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Government; (b) Tribal Organizations; (c) or Urban Indian Organizations.

### **Urban Indian Health Services**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of the Director Indian Health Service U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Parklawn Building, Room 6-12 5600 Fishers Lane Rockville, MD 20857 Contact: Mr. James Cussen, Director of Urban Programs Telephone: (301) 443-4680 www.hhs.gov **Program Objective:** To provide health-related services to Urban Indians including: (1) Alcohol and substance abuse prevention, treatment, rehabilitation, and education; (2) Mental health needs assessment and services; (3) Health promotion and disease prevention services; (4) Immunization services; and (5) Child abuse prevention and treatment.

**Eligible Applicants:** Urban Indian organizations with whom the Secretary has entered into a contract or grant under Title V of the Indian Health Care Improvement Act.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Urban Indians residing in the urban centers in which the organization is located.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### Bilingual/Bicultural Service Demonstration Projects in Minority Health\*

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division of Program Operations Office of Minority Health Office of Public Health and Science Office of the Secretary U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Rockwall II Building, Suite 1000 5515 Security Lane Rockville, MD 20852 Contact: Ms. Cynthia H. Amis, Director Telephone: (301) 594-0769 www.omhrc.gov **Program Objective:** To improve and expand the capacity for linguistic and cultural competence of health care professionals and paraprofessionals working with Limited-English-Proficient (LEP) minority communities and improve the accessibility and utilization of health care services among the LEP minority populations.

**Eligible Applicants:** Public and Private non-profit community-based organizations.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Minority Populations (American Indian or Alaska Native, Black or African American, Hispanic or Latino, and Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander.

### **Minority Community Health Coalition Demonstration\***

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division of Program Operations Office of Minority Health Office of Public Health and Science Office of the Secretary U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Rockwall II Building, Suite 1000 5515 Security Lane Rockville, MD 20852 Contact: Ms. Cynthia H. Amis, Director Telephone: (301) 594-0769 www.cdc.gov **Program Objective:** To support minority community health coalitions to develop, implement, and conduct demonstration projects which coordinate integrated community-based screening and outreach services, and include linkages for access and treatment to minorities in high-risk, low-income communities; and to support minority community health coalitions involving non-traditional partners in carrying out projects to increase the educational understanding of HIV/AIDS, increase testing, and improve access to HIV/AIDS prevention and treatment serious.

**Eligible Applicants:** Public and private non-profit community-based organizations.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Minority Populations (American Indian or Alaska Native, Black or African American, Hispanic or Latino, and Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander.)

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### **Minority Biomedical Research Support**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

MBRS Branch National Institute of General Medical Sciences National Institutes of Health U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 45 Center Drive MSC 6200 Bethesda, MD 20892-6200 Contact: Dr. Ernest Marquez, Chief Telephone: (301) 594-3900 www.nih.gov **Program Objective:** To increase the number of researchers who are members of minority groups that are under-represented in the biomedical sciences. MBRS gives grants to educational institutions with substantial minority enrollments to support research by faculty members, strengthen the institutions' biomedical research capabilities, and provide opportunities for students and faculty development.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Two and 4-year colleges, universities, and health professional schools with 50 percent or more enrollment of minorities that have been determined by the grantee institution to be under-represented in biomedical or behavioral research; (b) two and 4-year colleges with a student enrollment, a significant proportion of which (but not necessarily more than 50 percent) is derived from under-represented minorities, provided the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services determines that said institution has demonstrated commitment to the special encouragement of, and assistance to, under-represented minority faculty, students, and investigators; (c) Indian Tribes that have a recognized governing body and perform substantial governmental functions; or (d) Alaskan Regional Corporations, as defined in the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act (43 U.S.C. 1601 et. seq.).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Local; (b) Public nonprofit institutions/organizations; (c) Private non-profit institutions/organizations; (d) American Indian.

### Technical Assistance and Capacity Development Demonstration Program for HIV/AIDS - Related Services in Highly Impacted Minority Communities\*

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division of Program Operations Office of Minority Health Office of Public Health and Science Office of the Secretary U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Rockwall II Building, Suite 1000 5515 Security Lane Rockville, MD 20852 Contact: Ms. Cynthia H. Amis, Director Telephone: (301) 594-0769 www.omhrc.gov **Program Objective:** To demonstrate that the involvement of state and Territorial Offices of Minority Health in coordinating a statewide response to the HIV/AIDS crisis in minority communities can have a greater impact on the communities understanding of the disease, and the coordination of prevention and treatment services for minority populations, than agencies and/or organizations working independently.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State and Territorial Offices of Minority Health.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Minority Populations (American Indian or Alaska Native, Black or African American, Hispanic or Latino, and Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander.)

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### **Adolescent Family Life Research Grants**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Adolescent Pregnancy Programs Office of Population Affairs U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 4350 East-West Highway, Suite 200 Bethesda, MD 20814 Contact: Eugenia Eckard Telephone: (301) 594-4008 www.hhs.gov **Program Objective:** To encourage and support research projects and dissemination activities concerning the societal causes and consequences of adolescent sexual activity, contraceptive use, pregnancy and child rearing. To determine ways to alleviate, eliminate or resolve negative consequences of adolescent sexual activity, pregnancy and childbearing for parents, children and their families.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State (includes District of Columbia, public institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Local (includes state-designated Indian Tribes, excludes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (c) Public non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (d) Other public institutions/organizations; (e) Public non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (f) Private non-profit institutions/organizations (includes institutions/organizations; (h) U.S. Territories and possessions (includes institutions of higher education and hospitals); (i) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations); (j) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) State; (b) Local; (c) Public nonprofit institutions/organizations; (d) Other public institutions/organizations; (e) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (f) U.S. Territories; (g) Private non-profit institutions/organizations; (h) Other private institutions/organizations; (i) Native American Organizations.

### American Indian/Native American Community Planning Program

### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division for State and Community Assistance, Center for Substance Abuse Treatment Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 5600 Fishers Lane, Rockwall II Rockville, MD 20857 Contact: Maria E. Burns Telephone: (301) 443-7611 **Program Objective:** To fund planning efforts that support treatment in Native American communities.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Non-profit organizations; (b) Tribal colleges; (c) Tribes; (d) Tribal governments; and Faith-based organizations.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations.

Type of Assistance: Grants.

### Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division for State and Community Assistance, Center for Substance Abuse Treatment Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 5600 Fishers Lane, Rockwall II, Suite 880 Rockville, MD 20857 Contact: H. Richard Sampson Telephone: (301) 443-3820 www.nih.gov

### **Circles of Care**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Center for Mental Health Services Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 5600 Fishers Lane, Room 11C-16 Rockville, MD 20857 Contact: Jill Shepard Erickson M.S.W., or Gary De Carolis Telephone: (301) 443-1333 jerickso@samhsa.gov gdecarol@samhsa.gov **Program Objective:** To provide financial assistance to states and Territories to support projects for the development and implementation of prevention, treatment and rehabilitation activities directed to the diseases of alcohol and drug abuse.

**Eligible Applicants:** 50 states, District of Columbia, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, Commonwealth of Northern Mariana Islands, Palau, Micronesia, the Marshall Island, and the Red Lake Band of the Chippewa Indians of Minnesota.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) State; (b) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (c) U.S. Territories; (d) Native American Organizations.

Type of Assistance: Formula Grants.

**Program Objective:** To provide tribal communities with tools and resources to design systems of care for their children that reflect the unique needs of their communities. This grant program will not fund actual services. An important focus will be to integrate traditional healing methods indigenous to the communities with conventional treatment methodologies.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Tribal Governments and Urban Indian Organizations as defined by the Indian Self Determination Act, PL 93-638, and the Indian Health Care Improvement Act, PL 94-437 can apply. Collaboration with tribal colleges or universities (TCU's) is strongly encouraged. Previous Circles of Care grantees, (listed in Appendix I) are not eligible to apply.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Tribal Governments and Urban Indian Organizations.

### **Community Action Grants**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Community Support Programs Branch Center for Mental Health Services Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 5600 Fishers Lane, Room 11C-22 Rockville, MD 20857 Contact: Santo J. (Buddy) Ruiz Telephone: (301) 443-3653 **Program Objective:** To support the adoption and implementation of exemplary practices related to the delivery and organization of services for children with serious emotional disturbance or adults with serious mental illness. The target population may also have co-occurring disorders, such as substance abuse or other mental, emotional, or behavioral disorders.

**Eligible Applicants:** Phase I applications - (a) Units of state or local governments; (b) Tribal governments and organizations; (c) Domestic private nonprofit organizations such as community-based organizations, faith-based organizations, provider and consumer groups, universities, colleges, and health care organizations;(d) Consumer and family organizations.

Phase II applications - (a) Restricted to past or current Phase I grantees. To be eligible, Phase II applicants must demonstrate they have met the Phase I requirements and are ready to implement their exemplary practices.

**Eligible Beneficiaries**: (a) Adults with serious mental illness; or (b) children and adolescents with serious emotional disturbance and their families.

Type of Assistance: Cooperative Agreements.

### **Great Lakes Human Health Effects Research**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division of Toxicology Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry 1600 Clifton Road, NE, Mail Stop E-29 Atlanta, GA 30333 Contact: Dr. Heraline E. Hicks Telephone: (404) 639-6300 or 6306 www.atsdr.cdc.gov Program Objective: To (1) Build upon and amplify the results from past and on-going research in the Great Lakes basin; (2) develop information, databases and research methodology that will provide long-term benefit to human health effects research in the Great Lakes basin; (3) develop direction for future health effects research; (4) provide state local health officials: the concerned public and their medical health care professionals; (5) in concert with state and local health offices increase the public awareness regarding the potential health implications of the toxic pollution problem in the Great Lakes basin; and (6) coordinate as necessary with relevant Public Health Service (PHS) research programs and activities, including those of the Food and Drug Administration (FDA), Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), National Institutes of Health (NIH), and the Indian Health Service (IHS), as well as the Environmental Environment Protection Agency (EPA) and state and local health departments, to ameliorate adverse public health impacts of persistent toxic substances in the Great Lakes basin.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State (includes District of Columbia, public institutions of higher education and hospitals); (b) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (c) Specialized group (e.g. health professionals, students, veterans).

# Great Lakes Human Health Effects Research (continued)

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Individual/Family; (b) Minority group; (c) Specialized group (e.g. health professionals, students, veterans); (d) American Indian; (e) Low Income.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### **Targeted Capacity Expansion Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division of Grants Management, OPS/SAMH-SA, Rockwall II, 6th floor 5600 Fishers Lane Rockville, MD 20857 Contact: Kathleen Sample Telephone: (301) 443-9667 ksample@samhsa.gov **Program Objective:** To expand substance abuse treatment capacity in targeted areas for a targeted response to treatment capacity problems and/or emerging trends. To address gaps in treatment capacity by supporting rapid and strategic responses to demands for substance abuse (including alcohol and drug) treatment services in communities with serious, emerging drug problems as well as communities with innovative solutions to unmet needs.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Local Government (cities, towns, counties) or Indian Tribes; (b) Tribal Organizations.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Community providers/community-based organizations that serve predominantly racial and ethnic minorities disproportionately impacted by the HIV/AIDS epidemic.

Type of Assistance: Cooperative Agreements.

### **Youth Violence Prevention**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division of Grants Management Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration Parklawn Building, Room 13C-103 5600 Fishers Lane Rockville, MD 20857 Contact: Stephen Hudak Telephone: (301) 443- 9666 shudak@samhsa.gov **Program Objective:** To develop youth violence prevention community collaboration and preventive and early intervention services to reduce youth violence, substance abuse, mental health and other youth problems. To enhance collaboration activities and to develop comprehensive youth violence intervention and prevention services.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) States; (b) Political subdivisions of states; (c) Indian Tribes and tribal organizations; (d) Other public or private nonprofit organizations.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Community-based organizations; (b) Existing community collaborations, coalitions, and partnerships focusing on youth violence prevention or youth services; (c) Public or private educational systems, institutions, agencies; (d) Public or private mental health systems, institutions, and agencies; (e) Local law enforcement agencies; (f) Affiliated organizations.

Type of Assistance: Cooperative Agreements.

## U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

### Community Development Block Grants/Special Purpose Grants/ Technical Assistance Program\*

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Management and Technical Assistance Community Planning and Development U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 451 7th St., SW Washington, DC 20410 Telephone: (202) 708-3176 www.hud.gov/progdesc/cpdindx.html **Program Objective:** To help states, units of general local government, Indian Tribes and area-wide planning organizations to plan, develop, and administer local Community Development Block Grant programs.

**Eligible Applicants:** States, units of general local government, Indian Tribes, area-wide planning organizations, groups designated by such governmental units to assist them in carrying out assistance under Title I of Public Law 93-383 and qualified groups. Specifications for respondents to competitive request for proposals are stated in the request documents.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** States, units of general local government, Indian Tribes and Alaska natives, entities participating or actively intending to participate in the planning, developing, or administering of a Community Development Block Grant program.

**Type of Assistance:** Project Grants; Direct Payments for Specified Use.

### Community Development Block Grants/ Economic Development Initiative\*

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Financial Management Division Office of Block Grant Assistance Community Planning and Development U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 451 7th Street, SW Washington, DC 20410 Contact: Anthony Johnston Telephone: (202) 708-3484 www.hud.gov/progdesc/cpdindx.html **Program Objective:** To help public entities eligible under the Section 108 Loan Guarantee program carry out economic development projects authorized by Section 108(a) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended. Grant assistance must enhance the security of loans guaranteed under the Section 108 program or improve the viability of projects financed with loans guaranteed under the Section 108 program. In addition, this program will make competitive economic development grants in conjunction with Section 108 loan guarantees for qualified Brownfields projects.

**Eligible Applicants:** Units of general local government that are eligible public entities under the Section 108 Loan Guarantee program.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** The principal beneficiaries are low and moderate income persons.

### Indian Community Development Block Grant Program

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

National Office of Native American Programs U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 1999 North Broadway, Suite 3990 P.O. Box 90 Denver, CO 80202 Telephone: (303) 675-1600 www.hud.gov/progdesc/pihindx.html **Program Objective:** To provide assistance to Indian Tribes and Alaska Native villages in the development of viable Indian communities.

**Eligible Applicants:** Any Indian tribe, band, group, or nation, including Alaska Indians, Aleuts, and Eskimos, and any Alaska Native village that is eligible for assistance under the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act or which had been eligible under the State and Local Fiscal Assistance Act of 1972.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** The principal beneficiaries of ICDBG funds are low and moderate income persons. Low and moderate income is generally defined as 80 percent of the median income, as determined by HUD, adjusted for family size.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### Fair Housing Assistance Program -State and Local\*

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

FHIP/FHAP Support Division Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 451-7th Street, SW Washington, DC 20410 Contact: Lauretta Dixon, Director Telephone: (202)708-0800, Ext. 7051 www.hud.gov/progdesc/fheoindx.html **Program Objective:** To provide assistance to state and local fair housing enforcement agencies to support complaint processing, training, technical assistance, education and outreach, data and information systems and other activities that will further fair housing within the agency's jurisdiction. The intent of the Fair Housing Assistance Program (FHAP) is to build an intergovernmental enforcement effort to further fair housing and to assist state and local fair housing enforcement agencies to assume a greater share of the responsibility for administering fair housing laws.

**Eligible Applicants:** State and local fair housing enforcement agencies administering state and local fair housing laws and ordinances which have been certified by HUD as providing substantially equivalent rights and remedies as those provided by the Fair Housing Act and which have executed formal written agreements with HUD to process housing discrimination complaints.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Any person or group of persons aggrieved by a discriminatory housing practice because of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status, or national origin.

### **Home Investment Partnerships Program\***

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Affordable Housing Programs Community Planning and Development U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 451 7th Street, SW, Room 7164 Washington, DC 20410 Contact: Mary Kolesar, Director Telephone: (202) 708-2470 www.hud.gov/progdesc/cpdindx.html **Program Objective:** (1) To expand the supply of affordable housing, particularly rental housing, for low and very low income Americans; (2) to strengthen the abilities of state and local governments to design and implement strategies for achieving adequate supplies of decent, affordable housing; (3) to provide both financial and technical assistance to participating jurisdictions, including the development of model programs for developing affordable low income housing; and (4) to extend and strengthen partnerships among all levels of government and the private sector, including for-profit and nonprofit organizations, in the production and operation of affordable housing.

**Eligible Applicants:** States, cities, urban counties, and consortia (of contiguous units of general local governments with a binding agreement) are eligible to receive formula allocations; funds are also set aside for grants to Insular Areas.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** For rental housing, at least 90 percent of HOME funds must benefit low and very low income families at 60 percent of the area median income; the remaining ten percent must benefit families below 80 percent of the area median. Assistance to homeowners and home-buyers must be to families below 80 percent of the area median.

Type of Assistance: Formula Grants.

### **Public and Indian Housing Drug Elimination Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

National Office of Native American Programs Office of Housing Management U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 1999 Broadway, Suite 3390, P.O. Box 90 Denver, CO 80202 Telephone: (303) 675-1690, or Indian Housing Drug Elimination Resource Center P.O. Box 14970 Silver Spring, MD 20911 Telephone: (800) 839-5561 www.hud.gov/progdesc/pihindx.html **Program Objective:** The purposes of the Public Housing Drug Elimination Program are to (1) Reduce/eliminate drug-related crime in and around the real property comprising public housing projects; (2) To encourage public housing agencies (PHAs) and tribally designated housing entities (TDHEs) to develop a plan that includes initiatives that can be sustained over a period of several years for addressing the problem of drug-related crime in and around the premises of the public and Indian housing developments proposed for funding under this part, and; (3) To make available Federal grants to help PHAs and TDHEs carry out their plans.

**Eligible Applicants:** The program authorizes HUD to make grants to public housing agencies (PHAs) and Tribally-Designated Housing Entities (TDHEs) for use in reducing/eliminating drug-related crime.

Eligible Beneficiaries: Residents of Public and Indian Housing.

Type of Assistance: Formula Grants.

### Public and Indian Housing - Indian Loan Guarantee Program

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Loan Guarantee National Program Office of Native American Programs U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 1999 Broadway, Suite 3390 Box 90 Denver, CO 80202 Telephone: (303) 675-1600 www.hud.gov/progdesc/pihindx.html **Program Objective:** To provide homeownership opportunities to Native Americans, Tribes, Tribally Designated Housing Entities (TDHEs), and Indian Housing Authorities on Indian land through a guaranteed mortgage loan program available through private financial institutions.

**Eligible Applicants:** The loan applicant must be a Native American, which includes Alaska Natives, or a Tribally Designated Housing Authority (TDHE) or a Tribe or an Indian Housing Authority which meets certain requirements.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** The homeowner is the ultimate beneficiary of the program. When the Indian Housing Authority, TDHE or Tribe is the homebuyer, they may then rent the property. In these cases, the person renting the home would be an indirect beneficiary.

Type of Assistance: Guaranteed/Insured Loans.

### **Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Customer Services and Amenities Division Office of Public and Assisted Housing Delivery Public and Indian Housing U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 451 Seventh Street, SW, Room 4224 Washington, DC 20410 Telephone: (202) 708-4214 www.hud.gov/progdesc/pihindx.html **Program Objective:** To programmatically address the needs of public housing residents by providing supportive services, resident empowerment activities, and/or assisting residents in becoming economically self- sufficient. The primary focus of the program is on "welfare to work" and on independent living for the elderly and persons with disabilities.

**Eligible Applicants:** Public and Indian Housing (PHAs/IHAs), and Tribally Designated Housing entities (TDHEs), resident management corporations, resident councils or resident organizations (including nonprofit entities supported by residents) must establish partnerships to leverage resources with other Federal and non-federal entities.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Families as well as elderly/persons with disabilities who are residents of conventional public or Indian housing are eligible to receive benefits from the ROSS program.

### **Title VI Federal Guarantees for Financing Tribal Housing Activities**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Director of the Office of Loan Guarantee National Office of Native American Programs Public and Indian Housing U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 1999 Broadway, Box 90 Denver, CO 80202 Telephone: (303) 675-1600 www.hud.gov/progdesc/pihindx.html **Program Objective:** To assist an Indian tribe or Tribally Designated Housing Entity (TDHE) to obtain financing for affordable housing activities under Title II of NAHASDA where an obligation cannot be completed without such guarantee.

**Eligible Applicants:** The Borrower must be a Federally Recognized Indian tribe or TDHE that is an approved recipient for Indian Housing Block Grants (IHBG) funds.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Indian Tribes and their members. TDHEs act on behalf of tribes, as authorized by Tribal resolutions.

Type of Assistance: Guaranteed/Insured Loans.

# Alaska Native/Native Hawaiian Institutions Assisting Communities

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of University Partnerships Office of Policy Development and Research U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 451 7th Street, SW Washington, DC 20410 Contact: Contact Jane Karadbil Telephone: (202) 708-1537, Ext. 5918 www.oup.org/about/aboutannhiac.html **Program Objective:** To help Alaska Native Institutions (ANIs) of higher education and Native Hawaiian Institutions (NHIs) of higher education enhance their role and effectiveness in addressing community development needs in their localities, including neighborhood revitalization, housing, and economic development, consistent with the purposes of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974.

**Eligible Applicants:** Nonprofit Alaska Native Institutions of higher education and Native Hawaiian Institutions of higher education that are either on the U.S. Department of Education lists of eligible ANIs or NHIs or ANIs or NHIs that certify that they meet the statutory definition of an ANI or NHI. Each campus of an ANI is permitted to submit a separate application. An NHI may submit only one application per year, no matter how many campuses it has.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** The principal beneficiaries of the program include any city, county, town, parish, village, any other political subdivision of a state.

## **U.S. Department of the Interior**

### **Administrative Cost Grants for Indian Schools**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Indian Education Programs Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-3512 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Dr. James Martin Telephone: (202) 208-5810 www.oiep.bia.edu/administration.htm **Program Objective:** To provide grants to tribes and tribal organizations operating schools for the purpose of paying administrative and indirect costs.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations) operating a Bureau Funded school.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations; (c) American Indian.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### **Agriculture on Indian Lands**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Trust Responsibilities Division of Water and Land Resources Branch of Agriculture and Range Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4513 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Mark Bradford Telephone: (202) 208-3598 www.doi.gov/bia/otrhome.htm **Program Objective:** To protect and restore the agronomic and rangeland resources on trust lands and facilitate the development of renewable agricultural resources.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments and their members; (b) Native American Organizations; and (c) Individual American Indian land owners.

**Type of Assistance:** Direct Payments for Specified Use; Advisory Services and Counseling; Provision of Specialized Services.

### Aid to Tribal Governments

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Chief, Division of Tribal Government Services Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4660 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Telephone: (202) 208-5097 www.doi.gov/bia/tribegovserv/tribegov.htm **Program Objective:** To provide funds to Indian tribal governments to support general tribal government operations, to maintain up-to-date tribal enrollment, to conduct tribal elections, and to develop appropriate tribal policies, legislation, and regulations.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments and members of American Indian Tribes.

### Alaskan Indian Allotments and Subsistence Preference -Alaska National Interest Lands Conservation Act

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Trust Responsibilities Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4510 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Terry Virden Telephone: (202) 208-5831 www.doi.gov/bureau-indian-affairs.html **Program Objective:** To fulfill the directives prescribed in the Alaska National Interest Lands Conservation Act (ANILCA) which affect Alaska Natives and their allotments. The Bureau of Indian Affairs is responsible for assisting Alaska Native applicants acquire title to lands they occupy. Under the subsistence portion of the program, activities seek to establish that Alaska Native groups have traditionally and customarily used a particular resource for subsistence.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments in Alaska; (b) Native American Organizations authorized by the Tribes; (c) and individual Alaska Natives.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Federally Recognized Alaskan Indian Tribal Governments and their members.

Type of Assistance: Direct Payments for Specified Use.

### Assistance for Indian Children with Severe Disabilities

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Indian Education Programs Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior 201 Third Street, NW, Suite 510 Albuquerque, NM 87102 Contact: Kevin Skenandore Telephone: (505) 346-6544 www.oiep.bia.edu/sped.htm **Program Objective:** To provide for the special education and related services of Indian children with severe disabilities.

**Eligible Applicants:** Members or direct descendants of members of Federally Recognized tribes and enrolled in a BIA-funded school.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Indian children enrolled in a Bureau- funded school who are between the ages of five and twenty-one who have been determined by a multi-disciplinary team comprised of parents, teachers, school administrators and other concerned parties to be in need of specialized services available only in residential settings. Children whose fifth birthday occurs on or before December 31 or whose twenty-second birthday occurs during the course of the regular school year shall be regarded as eligible children for the entire school year.

# Assistance to Tribally-Controlled Community Colleges and Universities

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Indian Education Programs Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-3512 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Garry Martin Telephone: (202) 208-3478 www.oiep.bia.edu/ **Program Objective:** To provide grants for the operation and improvement of tribally controlled community colleges to insure continued and expanded educational opportunities for Indian students, and to allow for the improvement and expansion of the physical resources of such institutions.

**Eligible Applicants:** Colleges sponsored by Federally Recognized Indian Tribes or tribal organizations which are governed by a board of directors, are in operation more than one year, admit students with a certificate of graduation from a secondary institution or equivalent, provide certificates, associate, baccalaureate and graduate degrees, are nonprofit and nonsectarian.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Indian students who are a member of or are at least a one-fourth degree Indian blood descendant of a member of an Indian tribe which is eligible for the special programs and services provided by the United States through the Bureau of Indian Affairs to Indians because of their status as Indians.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### **Attorney's Fees - Indian Rights**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Trust Responsibilities Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4510 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Glenda Brokeshoulder Telephone: (202) 208-7216 www.doi.gov/bia/otrhome.htm **Program Objective:** To assist Federally Recognized Tribes in protecting their treaty rights and other rights established through Executive Order or court action.

**Eligible Applicants:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments and their members.

### **Endangered Species on Indian Lands**

### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Trust Responsibilities, Division of Water and Land Resources Branch of Agriculture and Range Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4513 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Valerie Guardia Telephone: (202) 208-3607 www.doi.gov/bia/otrhome.htm **Program Objective:** To comply with the Endangered Species Act, the Northern Spotted Owl Recovery plan, and to implement the Cheyenne River Prairie Management Plan on Indian lands.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments and Native American Organizations authorized by Indian tribal governments.

**Type of Assistance:** Direct Payments for Specified Use; Advisory Services and Counseling; Dissemination of Technical Information.

### **Forestry on Indian Lands**

### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Trust Responsibilities, Division of Forestry Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4513 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Bill Downs Telephone: (202) 208-4837 www.doi.gov/bia/otrhome.htm#Forests **Program Objective:** To maintain, protect, enhance, and develop Indian forest resources through the execution of forest management activities.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations; (c) American Indian.

**Type of Assistance:** Contracts/Grants for specified use; provision of technical assistance.

### Improvement and Repair of Indian Detention Facilities

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Office of Law Enforcement Services Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior P.O. Box 66 Albuquerque, NM 87103 Telephone: (505) 248-7937 www.doi.gov/bia/ofmc/cm.htm#3 **Program Objective:** To provide safe, functional, code and standards compliant, economical, and energy-efficient adult and/or juvenile detention facilities.

**Eligible Applicants:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments who have a prioritized facilities improvement and repair project for a bureau detention facility for which funds have been appropriated.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

### **Indian Adult Education**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Indian Education Programs Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-3512 MB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Garry Martin Telephone: (202) 208-3478 www.oiep.bia.edu/contact.htm **Program Objective:** To improve the educational opportunities for Indian adults who lack the level of literacy skills necessary for effective citizenship and productive employment and to encourage the establishment of adult education programs.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations; (c) American Indian.

**Type of Assistance:** Grants to Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

### **Indian Arts and Crafts Development**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Indian Arts and Crafts Board Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior Room 4004-Main Interior Building Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Meredith Z. Stanton Telephone: (202) 208-3773 www.iacb.doi.gov **Program Objective:** To encourage and promote the development of American Indian and Alaska Native arts and crafts.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) American Indian and Alaska Native individuals and organizations; (b) Federally Recognized Indian tribal governments; (c) State and local governments; and (d) Nonprofit organizations.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) American Indian and Alaska Native individuals and organizations; (b) Federally Recognized Indian tribal governments; (c) State and local governments; and (d) Nonprofit organizations.

**Type of Assistance:** Use of property, Facilities, and Equipment; Advisory Services and Counseling; Investigation of Complaints.

### Indian Child and Family Education

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Indian Education Programs Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior 201 Third Street, NW, Suite 510 Albuquerque, NM 87102 Contact: Kevin Skenandore Telephone: (505) 346-6544 www.oiep.bia.edu/sirc.htm **Program Objective:** To begin educating children at an early age through parental involvement, to increase high school graduation rates among Indian parents, and to encourage life-long learning.

**Eligible Applicants:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments and tribal organizations authorized by Indian tribal governments on reservations with Bureau-funded schools may apply to administer the program.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Parents and their Indian children under 5 years of age who live on a reservation with a bureau-funded school.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants; Training.

### Indian Child Welfare Act - Title II Grants

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Tribal Services, Division of Social Services Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS 4603 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Larry Blair, Code 450 Telephone: (202) 208-2721 www.doi.gov/bia/ots/otshome.htm **Program Objective:** To promote the stability and security of American Indian Tribes and families by protecting American Indian children and preventing the separation of American Indian families and providing assistance to Indian Tribes in the operation of child and family service programs.

**Eligible Applicants:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

Eligible Beneficiaries: American Indian children and families.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### **Indian Community Fire Protection**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Tribal Services Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4660 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Telephone: (202) 208-3463 www.doi.gov/bia/ots/otshome.htm **Program Objective:** To provide funds to perform fire protection services for Indian Tribal Governments that do not receive fire protection support from state or local government.

**Eligible Applicants:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments performing fire protection services on their reservation.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

Type of Assistance: Direct Payments for Specified Use.

### **Indian Economic Development**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Economic Development Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4640, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Woodrow Sneed Telephone: (202) 208-4796 www.doi.gov/bia/ecodev/index.htm **Program Objective:** To assist Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments to develop resources to improve their economies through administration of credit programs and other economic development assistance activities.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments and their members.

### Indian Education Facilities, Operations, and Maintenance

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Indian Education Programs Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior 201 Third Street, NW, Suite 510 Albuquerque, NM 87102 Contact: Rodney Young Telephone: (505) 346-6545 www.oiep.bia.edu/ **Program Objective:** To provide funds to BIA-funded elementary or secondary schools or peripheral dormitories for facilities operations and maintenance.

**Eligible Applicants:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments or tribal organizations currently served by a BIA-funded elementary or secondary school or peripheral dormitory.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments and occupants and visitors of BIA-funded elementary or secondary schools or peripheral dormitories.

Type of Assistance: Direct Payments for Specified Use.

### **Indian Education Assistance to Schools**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division of Education Programs Office of Indian Education Programs Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Chief, Division of Education Telephone: (202) 219-1127 www.oiep.bia.edu/jom.htm **Program Objective:** To fund programs that meet the unique and specialized needs of eligible Indian students.

**Eligible Applicants:** Tribal organizations, Indian Corporations, school districts or states which have eligible Indian children attending public school districts and have established Indian Education Committees to approve supplementary or operational support programs beneficial to Indian students.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Children who are enrolled members of, or at least one-fourth or more degree of Indian blood descendant of a member of a federally recognized Indian tribal government eligible for service by the bureau, and are between age 3 through grade 12 with priority given to those residing on or near Indian reservations.

Type of Assistance: Direct Payments for Specified Use.

### Indian Education - Higher Education Grant Program

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Indian Education Programs Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS 3512-MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Garry Martin Telephone: (202) 208-3478 www.oiep.bia.edu/scholarships.htm **Program Objective:** To provide financial aid to eligible Indian students to enable them to attend accredited institutions of higher education.

**Eligible Applicants:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments and tribal organizations authorized by Indian Tribal Governments may apply to administer the program. Individuals who are members of Federally Recognized Indian Tribes may submit applications for benefits directly to the Bureau of Indian Affairs if the Bureau agency serving their reservation provides direct services for this program. Individuals must be enrolled in an accredited college and have financial need as determined by the institution's financial aid office.

# Indian Education - Higher Education Grant Program (continued)

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Members of a Federally Recognized Indian Tribe who are enrolled or accepted for enrollment in an accredited college and have financial need as determined by the institution's financial aid office.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### **Indian Employment Assistance**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Economic Development, Division of Job Placement and Training Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4640 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Terry Parks Telephone: (202) 208-5819 www.doi.gov/bia/ecodev/index.htm **Program Objective:** To provide vocational training and employment opportunities to eligible American Indians and reduce Federal dependence.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments and Native American Organizations authorized by Indian Tribal Governments may apply to administer the program; (b) Individual American Indian applicants must be a member of a Federally Recognized Indian Tribe, be in need of financial assistance, and reside on or near an Indian reservation under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Members of Federally Recognized Indian Tribes who are unemployed, underemployed, or in need of training to obtain reasonable and satisfactory employment.

Type of Assistance: Direct Payments for Specified Use.

### **Indian Graduate Student Scholarships**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

American Indian Graduate Center 4520 Montgomery Boulevard, Suite 1-B Albuquerque, NM, 87109 Telephone: (505) 881-4584 www.oiep.bia.edu/contact.htm **Program Objective:** To provide financial aid to eligible Indian students to enable them to obtain advanced degrees.

**Eligible Applicants:** Individual applicants must be Indian students who are members of Federally Recognized Indian Tribes, who have been admitted to a graduate program and have unmet financial need.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Members of Federally Recognized Indian Tribes who are a member of or are at least one-fourth degree Indian blood descendant of a member of an Indian tribe which is eligible for the special programs and services provided by the United States through the Bureau of Indian Affairs to Indians because of their status as Indians.

### **Indian Housing Assistance**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division of Human Service Office of Tribal Services Bureau of Indian Affairs MS-4641 MIB, 1849 C St., NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: June Henkel Telephone: (202) 208-3667 www.doi.gov/bia/tservices/hip/housing.htm **Program Objective:** To use the Housing Improvement Program (HIP) resources of the Bureau of Indian Affairs to eliminate substantially substandard Indian owned and inhabited housing for very low income eligible Indians living in approved tribal service areas. This effort is assisted by the Indian Health Service (Department of Health and Human Services) which provides water and sanitary systems for houses repaired or built with HIP funds.

**Eligible Applicants:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments and tribal organizations to administer the program who have eligible applicants with identified housing needs. Individual members of Federally Recognized Indian Tribes living in approved tribal service areas in need of housing assistance who are unable to obtain assistance from any other source, and who meet the eligibility criteria of the HIP regulations (25 CFR Part 256 "Housing Improvement Program").

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Individual Members of Federally Recognized Indian Tribes.

**Type of Assistance:** Project Grants; Dissemination of Technical Information.

### **Indian Law Enforcement**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Law Enforcement Services Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior 417 Gold SW, Suite 120 P.O. Box 66 Albuquerque, NM 87103 Telephone: (505) 248-7937 www.bialaw.fedworld.gov/ **Program Objective:** To provide funds to Indian Tribal Governments to operate police departments and detention facilities.

**Eligible Applicants:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments exercising Federal criminal law enforcement authority over crimes under the Major Crimes Act (18 U.S.C. 1153) and other Federal statutes on their reservations and operating a Law Enforcement Services program.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

### **Indian Rights Protection**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Trust Responsibilities Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4510 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Larry Scrivner Telephone: (202) 208-7737 www.doi.gov/bia/Rightsprot.htm **Program Objective:** To protect Indian rights guaranteed through treaty or statute by obtaining the services or information needed to litigate challenges to these rights.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments and their members.

Type of Assistance: Direct Payments for Specified Use.

### Indian Schools- Student Transportation

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Indian Education Programs Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS 3512 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Dr. James Martin Telephone: (202) 208-5810 www.oiep.bia.edu **Program Objective:** To provide funds to each school for the round trip transportation of students between home and the school site.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations) currently served by a Bureau funded school.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations; (c) American Indian.

Type of Assistance: Direct Payments for Specified Use.

### **Indian Self-Determination Contract Support**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division of Self-Determination Services Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4603 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: James Thomas Telephone: (202)208-5727 www.doi.gov/bia/self-determ/idc.htm **Program Objective:** To provide funds to Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments and to tribal organizations to fund some or all of the indirect costs incurred in administering Federal programs for which direct appropriations are made to the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

### Indian Social Services - General Assistance

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division of Social Services Office of Tribal Services Bureau of Indian Affairs MS 4641 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20245 Contact: Larry R. Blair Telephone: (202) 208- 2721 www.doi.gov/bia/childw~2.htm **Program Objective:** To provide financial assistance for basic needs of needy eligible American Indians who reside on or near reservations, including those American Indians living under Bureau of Indian Affairs service area jurisdictions, when such assistance is not available from State or local public agencies.

**Eligible Applicants:** An American Indian who is a member of a Federally Recognized Indian Tribe, who resides on or near a Federally Recognized Indian reservations, who is in need of financial assistance and who meets the eligibility criteria in 25 CFR Part 20.

Eligible Beneficiaries: (a) American Indian; (b) Low Income.

Type of Assistance: Direct Payments with Unrestricted Use.

### Indian Vocational Training - United Tribes Technical College

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Economic Development Division of Job Placement and Training Bureau of Indian Affairs MS-4640 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Telephone: (202) 208-2671 Contact: Deano Poleahla www.united-tribes.tec.nd.us/ **Program Objective:** To provide vocational training to individual American Indians through the United Tribes Technical College, located in Bismarck, North Dakota.

**Eligible Applicants:** Application to administer the program is limited to the United Tribes Technical College. Individual American Indian applicants must be a member of a Federally Recognized Indian Tribe, be in need of financial assistance, and be in residence on or near an Indian reservation under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Individual American Indians who are members of a Federally Recognized Indian Tribe and reside on or near an Indian reservation under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

Type of Assistance: Training.

### **Irrigation Operations and Maintenance on Indian Lands**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Trust Responsibilities, Division of Water and Land Resources Branch of Agriculture and Range Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4513 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Ross Mooney Telephone: (202) 208-5480 www.doi.gov/bureau-indian-affairs.html **Program Objective:** To conserve water and operate and maintain the irrigation water delivery systems on Indian irrigation projects and maintain the dams in a safe, economical, beneficial, and equitable manner.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments and their members and Native American Organizations.

**Type of Assistance:** Direct Payments for Specified Use; Use of Property, Facilities, and Equipment; Provision of Specialized Services.

### Litigation Support for Indian Rights

#### Program/ Agency Contact

Office of Trust Responsibilities Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4510 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Glenda Brokeshoulder Telephone: (202) 208-7216 www.doi.gov/bia/otrhome.htm

### **Tribal Courts**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division of Tribal Government Services Bureau of Indian Affairs U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4641 MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Jim James Telephone: (202) 208-4400 www.doi.gov/bia/ots/otshome.htm **Program Objective:** To establish or defend Indian property or treaty rights through judicial, administrative, or settlement actions.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

Type of Assistance: Direct Payments for Specified Use.

**Program Objective:** To provide funds to Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments to operate a judicial branch of government.

**Eligible Applicants:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments exercising law enforcement jurisdiction on their reservation.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

Type of Assistance: Direct Payments for Specified Use.

### **Cooperative Inspection Agreements With States and Tribes**

### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Assistant Director Resource Use & Protection (300) Bureau of Land Management U.S. Department of the Interior Washington, DC 20240 Telephone: (202) 208-4201 www.blm.gov/nhp/index.htm **Program Objective:** To provide for the BLM to enter into cooperative agreements with Tribes so that authorized Tribal inspectors can carry out inspection activities on Indian oil and gas leases within Tribal jurisdiction.

**Eligible Applicants:** Indian Tribes with producing tribal oil and gas leases for which the Federal government has trust responsibility. States may enter into a cooperative agreement for inspection of tribal oil and gas leases with the permission of the Tribe.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Indian Tribes with producing tribal oil and gas leases for which the Federal government has trust responsibility. States that have tribal permission to enter into cooperative agreements to conduct inspections on tribal oil and gas leases.

### **American Battlefield Protection**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

American Battlefield Protection Program National Park Service, 1849 C Street, NW, NC 330 U.S. Department of the Interior Washington, DC 20240 Telephone: (202) 343-1210 or (202) 343-3941 www.zcr.nps.gov/abpp/ **Program Objective:** An initiative managed by the National Park Service's Heritage Preservation Services to promote the protection and preservation of battlefield lands on American soil by funding non- acquisition preservation methods such as planning, education, survey and inventory.

**Eligible Applicants:** Applicant may be (a) Federal, intrastate, interstate, state and local agencies; (b) Public or private nonprofit institutions/organizations; (c) Federally Recognized Indian tribal governments; (d) U.S. territory and possessions; (e) Native American organizations; (f) State colleges and universities; (g) Public and private colleges and universities. Multi-organizational applications are encouraged.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federal, intrastate, interstate, state and local agencies; (b) Public and private nonprofit institutions/organizations; (c) Federally Recognized Indian tribal governments; (d) U.S. territories and possessions; (e) Native American organizations; (f) State college or universities; (g) Public and private colleges and universities.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### Fish and Wildlife Management Assistance

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Chief, Division of Fish and Wildlife Management Assistance Room 840 ARLSQ U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service U.S. Department of the Interior Washington, DC 20240 Telephone: (703) 358- 1718 www.fisheries.fws.gov **Program Objective:** To provide technical information, advice, and assistance to other Federal agencies, other nations, states, and Native Americans on the conservation and management of fish and wildlife resources, including co-management by Alaskan Natives of marine mammals for subsistence use.

**Eligible Applicants:** State agencies, Native Americans and Federal agencies are eligible to request assistance on a cost recoverable basis.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federal; (b) State; (c) Local; (d) Public nonprofit institutions/organizations; (e) Private non-profit institutions/organizations; (f) American Indians.

Type of Assistance: Provision of Specialized Services.

### Services to Indian Children, Elderly, and Families

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Division of Social Services Bureau of Indian Affairs, U.S. Department of the Interior MS-4641-MIB, 1849 C Street, NW Washington, DC 20240 Contact: Larry Blair Telephone: (202) 208-2479 www.doi.gov/bia/childw~2.htm **Program Objective:** To provide funds to Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments to administer welfare assistance programs for both American Indian adults and children; to support caseworkers and counselors; and to support tribal programs to reduce the incidence of substance abuse and alcohol abuse in Indian country.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments, adult American Indians in need of financial assistance or social services counseling, American Indian children who require foster care services, and American Indian youth requiring temporary, emergency shelter.

## The Morris K. Udall Scholarship and Excellence in National Environmental Policy Foundation

### Morris K. Udall Native American Congressional Internship Program

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

The Morris K. Udall Scholarship and Excellence in National Environmental Policy Foundation 110 South Church, Suite 3350 Tucson, AZ 85701 Contact: Christopher L. Helms, Executive Director Telephone: (520) 670-5608 www.udall.gov **Program Objective:** To honor former Arizona Congressman Morris K. Udall through the operation of internship, scholarship, and fellowship programs, financed by a permanent trust fund endowment; to develop increased opportunities for young Americans to prepare for and pursue careers related to the environment; and to Native Americans and Alaska Natives who intend to pursue careers in health care and tribal public policy.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Applicants must be a member of a recognized tribe or an Alaskan native; (b) Be a matriculated senior, graduate student or law student in a college or university; (c) Have a minimum 3.2 GPA; and (d) have an interest in tribal government and policy.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) U.S. Citizens; (b) Alaska Natives; (c) or Enrolled members of a recognized tribe.

## **U.S. Department of Justice**

### Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement Discretionary Grants Program

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Justice Programs Bureau of Justice Assistance U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Contact: Timothy Murray Telephone: (202) 514- 5943 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To provide leadership and direction in controlling the use and availability of illegal drugs and to improve the functioning of the criminal justice system, with emphasis on violent crime and serious offenders. Programs for FY 2000 demonstrate innovative, comprehensive, and integrated multi-agency approaches to violent crime control and community mobilization programs.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State and local government agencies; (b) Public and private nonprofit organizations; and (c) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal governments are eligible to apply for and receive funds under this program.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) State and local governments; (b) Public and private organizations; and (c) Indian Tribal governments.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Justice Programs Bureau of Justice Assistance U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Telephone: (202) 305-2088 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To provide funds to units of local government for the purposes of reducing crime and improving public safety. Funds may be used for one or more of seven program purpose areas (See Uses and Use Restrictions). Funds or a portion of funds allocated under this title may also be used to contract with private, nonprofit entities or community-based organizations to carry out the purposes of this Block Grants Program. BJA will also make awards to states based on the allocation formula specified in the legislation.

**Eligible Applicants:** Funding under this program is available to units of local government within a state. A unit of local government is a town or township, village, city, or county or recognized governing body of an Indian tribe or Alaskan Native village that carries out substantial governmental duties and powers. Each unit of local government must report Uniform Crime Report (UCR) data so as to determine amounts of allocation. These data must reflect Part I violent crimes, which are murder, aggravated assault, rape, and robbery, that have been committed in each eligible jurisdiction. Data reported and vetted by the FBI for the three previous years will be averaged and used to compute allocations. The amount of the award is proportionate to each local jurisdiction's average annual amount of Part I violent crimes compared to that for all other local jurisdictions in the state. Further, for the purposes of this Block Grants

# Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program (continued)

Program the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico shall be considered a unit of local government as well as a state. In addition, each state will receive a minimum award of 0.25 percent of the total amount available for formula distribution under the Block Grants Program.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) States; (b) Units of local government, and (c) U.S. Territories.

Type of Assistance: Formula Grants.

### **Tribal Court Assistance Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Justice Programs Bureau of Justice Assistance U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Telephone: (202) 514- 5947 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To assist tribal governments in the development, enhancement, and continuing operation of tribal judicial systems, including inter-tribal court systems.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments.

Eligible Beneficiaries: (a) Indian Tribal governments.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### **Correctional Facilities on Tribal Lands Discretionary Grant Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Corrections Program Office Office of Justice Programs U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Contact: Jill Young, Chief, Grants Management Telephone: (800) 848-6325 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To assist Indian Tribes with the construction of jails on tribal lands for the incarceration of offenders subject to tribal jurisdiction.

**Eligible Applicants:** Indian Tribes may apply. An Indian tribe is defined as any Indian or Alaska Native tribe, band, nation, pueblo, village, or community that the Secretary of the Interior acknowledges to exist as an Indian tribe pursuant to Public Law 103-454, 108 Stat. 4791, and which performs law enforcement functions as determined by the Secretary of the Interior.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** a) Federally Recognized Tribal Governments.

### Technical Assistance for Violent Offender Incarceration and Truth-in-Sentencing Incentive Program or Facilities on Tribal Lands Discretionary Grant Program

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Corrections Program Office Office of Justice Programs U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Contact: Jill Young, Chief, Grants Management Telephone: (800) 848-6325 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To assist Indian Tribes with the five phases of the facility development process through tailored technical assistance: Pre architectural, Site Selection and Planning, Architectural Design, Construction, and Occupancy of adult and juvenile tribal correctional facilities.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations (includes Indian groups, cooperatives, corporations, partnerships, associations).

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (b) Native American Organizations; (c) American Indian.

**Type of Assistance:** The Corrections Program Office provides a broad range of technical assistance related to the eligibility, implementation, and administration of its grant programs which is tailored to the needs of the requesting State or jurisdiction. CPO draws on practitioners, consultants, and researchers from across the country to provide on-site or other site-specific technical assistance.

### **Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Community Oriented Policing Services U.S. Department of Justice 1100 Vermont Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20530 Telephone: (800) 421-6770 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To increase police presence, to improve cooperative efforts between law enforcement agencies and members of the community, to expand community policing efforts through the use of technology and other innovative strategies, to address crime and disorder problems, and to otherwise enhance public safety.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) States; (b) Units of local government; Indian tribal governments; (c) Other public and private entities; and (d) Multi-jurisdictional or regional consortia thereof.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) States; (b) Units of local government; (c) Indian tribal governments; (d) Other public and private entities; and (e) Multi-jurisdictional or regional consortia thereof.

### **Circles of Care**

### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Justice Programs Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Program U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Contact: Doug Dodge and Laura Ansera Telephone: (202) 307- 5924 www.usdoj.gov

### **Tribal Youth Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Justice Programs Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Program U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Contact: Laura Ansera, Program Manager State and Tribal Assistance Division Telephone: (202) 307- 5924 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To provide tribal communities with tools and resources to design systems of care for their children that reflect the unique needs of their communities. This grant program will not fund actual services. An important focus will be to integrate traditional healing methods indigenous to the communities with conventional treatment methodologies.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) Tribal governments and urban Indian organizations as defined by the Indian Self Determination Act, PL 93-638, and the Indian Health Care Improvement Act, PL 94-437 can apply. Collaboration with tribal colleges or universities (TCU's) is strongly encouraged. Previous Circles of Care grantees, (listed in Appendix I) are not eligible to apply.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Tribal Governments; and (b) Urban Indian Organizations.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

**Program Objective:** To support and enhance tribal efforts for comprehensive delinquency prevention, control, and juvenile justice system improvement for Native American youth.

**Eligible Applicants:** Applications are only invited from Federally Recognized tribes and Alaskan Native villages, however, tribes and villages may partner with others as applicable. If partnering with others, a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) should be submitted with the application. Additionally, one tribe should be chosen as the primary agency for funding and reporting purposes.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Tribes and (b) Alaskan Native villages.

### **Tribal Youth Program - Mental Health Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Justice Programs Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Program U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Contact: Laura Ansera, Program Manager State and Tribal Assistance Division Telephone: (202) 307- 5924 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To support juvenile delinquency prevention and intervention through the creation and implementation of culturally sensitive programs, The Tribal Youth Program (TYP) Mental Health Program was established to promote Indian youth mental health, education, and substance abuse-related (alcohol as well as drug abuse) services. To support tribes in providing a range of youth support services and programs, this program will address the mental health and related needs of American Indian/Alaska Native (AI/AN) young people and their families in various community settings, such as homes, schools, violence prevention education programs, health care treatment programs, and the juvenile justice system.

**Eligible Applicants:** Applications are only invited from Federally Recognized Tribes and Alaskan Native villages, however, Tribes and villages may partner with others as applicable.

**Eligible Applicants (continued):** If partnering with others, a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) should be submitted with the application. Additionally, one tribe should be chosen as the primary agency for funding and reporting purposes.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Federally Recognized Tribes; and (b) Alaskan Native Villages.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### **Children's Justice Act Partnerships for Indian Communities**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Justice Programs Office for Victims of Crime U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Contact: Cathy Sanders, Deputy Director, Federal Crime Victims Division Telephone: (202) 616-3578 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To make grants for the purpose of assisting Native American Indian Tribes in developing, establishing, and operating programs designed to improve the handling of child abuse cases, particularly cases of child sexual abuse, in a manner which limits additional trauma to the child victim and improves the investigation and prosecution of cases of child abuse, fifteen percent of the first \$10 million of funds from the Crime Victims Fund that are transferred to the Department of Health and Human Services as part of the Children's Justice Act are to be statutorily reserved by the Office for Victims of Crime (OVC).

**Eligible Applicants:** Federally Recognized Indian tribal governments and nonprofit Indian organizations that provide services to Native Americans. Specific criteria will vary depending on the grant.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Native American youth who are victims of child abuse and/or child sexual abuse.

**Type of Assistance:** Project Grants; Direct Payments for Specified Use.

### **Crime Victim Assistance/Discretionary Grants**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Justice Programs Office for Victims of Crime U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Contact: Thomas J. Kilmartin, Director Telephone: (202) 616-3568 or Olga Trujillo, Director, Special Projects Division Telephone: (202) 616-3585 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To improve the overall quality of services delivered to crime victims through the provision of training and technical assistance to providers, three percent of the amount above the first 10 million deposited into the Crime Victims Fund is statutorily reserved by the Office for Victims of Crime for grants for (a) demonstration projects and training and technical assistance services to eligible crime victims assistance programs; and (b) for the financial support of services to victims of Federal crime by eligible crime victim assistance programs, 42 U.S.C. Section 10603. Additionally, the funds are designed to improve the Federal and state response to victims of Federal crime.

**Program Objective (continued):** Of the amount available for training and technical assistance and services to victims of Federal crimes, not more than 50 percent shall be used for demonstration programs and training and technical assistance, and not less than 50 percent for services to victims of Federal crimes.

**Eligible Applicants:** Criteria will vary depending on the grant. Generally, eligible applicants may include American Indian/Alaska Native Tribes and tribal organizations, states, United States Attorneys' offices, eligible victim service agencies, private nonprofit agencies, and Federal training centers. Applicants for Victim Assistance in Indian Country grants must be an Indian Tribe, Tribal organizations, partnerships or non-profit organization that provides direct services to victims of crime in areas of Indian Country that are under Federal criminal justice jurisdiction.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Public nonprofit institutions/organizations; (b) Individual/Family; (c) Private non-profit institutions/organizations; (d) Anyone/General Public; (e) Native American Organizations; (f) American Indian.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants; Direct Payments for Specified.

### **Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Violence Against Women Office Office of Justice Programs U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Telephone: (202) 307-6026 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To implement mandatory arrest or pro-arrest programs and policies in police departments, including mandatory arrest programs and policies for protection order violations; as part of a coordinated community response to domestic violence to develop policies and training in police departments to improve tracking of cases involving domestic violence; to centralize and coordinate police enforcement in groups or units of police officers, prosecutors or judges; to coordinate computer tracking systems to ensure communication between police, prosecutors, and both criminal and family courts; to strengthen legal advocacy service programs for victims of domestic violence; and to educate judges in criminal and other courts about domestic violence and to improve judicial handling of such cases.

Eligible Applicants: Eligible grantees are states, Indian tribal governments, or units of local governments that (1) certify that their laws or official policies encourage or mandate arrests of domestic violence offenders based on probable cause that an offense has been committed, and encourage or mandate arrest of domestic violence offenders who violate the terms of a valid and outstanding protection order; (2) demonstrate that their laws, policies, or practices and their training programs discourage dual arrest of the offender and the victim; (3) certify that their laws, policies, or practices prohibit issuance of mutual restraining orders of protection except in cases where both spouses file a claim and the court makes detailed findings of fact indicating that both spouses acted primarily as aggressors and that neither spouse acted primarily in self-defense; and (4) certify that their laws, policies, or practices do not require, in connection with the prosecution of any misdemeanor or felony domestic violence offense, that the abused bear the costs associated with the filing of criminal charges or the service of such charges on an abuser, or that the abused bear the costs associated with the issuance or service of a warrant, protection order, or witness subpoena.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Beneficiaries include criminal and tribal justice practitioners and service providers who respond to victims of violent crimes committed against women in rural jurisdictions and Indian country, and rural and tribal communities in general.

### Rural Domestic Violence and Child Victimization Enforcement Grant Program

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Violence Against Women Office Office of Justice Programs U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Telephone: (202) 307-6026 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To implement, expand, and establish cooperative efforts and projects between law enforcement officers, prosecutors, victim advocacy groups, and other related parties to investigate and prosecute incidents of domestic violence and child abuse; provide advocacy and counseling to victims of domestic violence and child victimization; and work in cooperation with the community to develop education and prevention strategies directed toward such issues.

**Eligible Applicants:** State agencies in rural states may apply for assistance for statewide projects. Local units of government in rural states and public and private entities in rural states also may apply directly for assistance. Only state agencies in non-rural states may apply for funding assistance. These agencies may apply on behalf of one or more of their rural jurisdictions. Rural and/or non-rural States also may submit joint applications for projects that would be implemented in more than one state. Indian tribal governments may make individual applications or apply as a consortium. A tribal government also may apply for assistance on behalf of a non-tribal government organization. Only grantees who received a fiscal year 1998 Rural Domestic Violence and Child Victimization Enforcement grant will receive funding.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Beneficiaries include criminal and tribal justice practitioners and service providers who respond to victims of violent crimes committed against women in rural jurisdictions and Indian country, and rural and tribal communities in general.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### Violence Against Women Formula Grants\*

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Violence Against Women Office Office of Justice Programs U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Telephone: (202) 307-6026 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To assist states, Indian tribal governments, and units of local government to develop and strengthen effective law enforcement and prosecution strategies to combat violent crimes against women and to develop and strengthen victim services in cases involving crimes against women.

**Eligible Applicants:** All states, commonwealths, territories and possessions of the United States, as well as the District of Columbia, are eligible. For the purposes of this program, American Samoa and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands shall be considered as one state, and, for these purposes, 67 percent of the amounts allocated shall be allocated to American Samoa and 33 percent to the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands. Funds will be sub-granted to units of local government, nonprofit non-governmental victim services programs, and Indian tribal governments.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** State and local units of government, nonprofit non-governmental victim services programs, and Indian tribal governments.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### Violence Against Women Discretionary Grants for Indian Tribal Governments

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Violence Against Women Office Office of Justice Programs U.S. Department of Justice 810 Seventh Street, NW Washington, DC 20531 Telephone: (202) 307-6026 www.usdoj.gov **Program Objective:** To assist Indian tribal governments to develop and strengthen effective law enforcement and prosecution strategies to combat violent crimes against women and to develop and strengthen victim services in cases involving crimes against women.

**Eligible Applicants:** Indian tribal governments may apply for continuation and/or supplemental grants only.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** (a) Indian tribal governments; and (b) nonprofit non-governmental victim services programs who have received a STOP Violence Against Indian Women grant previously.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

## **Small Business Administration**

## 8(A) Business Development

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

8(a) Business Development Small Business Administration 409 Third Street, SW Washington, DC 20416 Telephone: (202) 205-6421 www.sba.gov **Program Objective:** To foster business ownership by individuals who are both socially and economically disadvantaged; and to promote the competitive viability of such firms by providing business development assistance including, but not limited to, management and technical assistance, access to capital and other forms of financial assistance, business training and counseling, and access to sole source and limited competition Federal contract opportunities, to help the firms to achieve competitive viability.

Eligible Applicants: Firms applying for 8(a) program participation must meet certain requirements which include, but are not limited to: (a) status as a small business; (b) at least 51 percent unconditional ownership, control and management of the business by an American citizen(s) determined by SBA to be socially and economically disadvantaged, or by an economically disadvantaged Indian Tribe, Alaska Native Corporation, or Native Hawaiian Organization; and (c) demonstrate potential for success. Absent evidence to the contrary, the following individuals are presumed to be socially disadvantaged: African Americans, Hispanic Americans, Native Americans, Asian Pacific Americans and Subcontinent Asian Americans. Individuals who are not members of the named groups may establish their social disadvantage on the basis of a preponderance of evidence of personal disadvantage stemming from color, national origin, gender, physical handicap, long- term residence in an environment isolated from the American society, or other similar cause beyond the individual's control. Economic disadvantage must be demonstrated on a case-by-case basis.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Socially and economically disadvantaged individuals and businesses owned and operated by such individuals; economically disadvantaged Indian Tribes including Alaskan Native Corporations and economically disadvantaged Native Hawaiian organizations.

Type of Assistance: Provision of Specialized Services.

## **U.S. Department of Transportation**

## **Airport Improvement Program**

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Federal Aviation Administration Office of Airport Planning and Programming Airports Financial Assistance Division U.S. Department of Transportation APP-500, 800 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20591 Telephone: (202) 267-3831 www.dot.gov **Program Objective:** To assist sponsors, owners, or operators of public-use airports in the development of a nationwide system of airports adequate to meet the needs of civil aeronautics.

**Eligible Applicants:** States, counties, municipalities, U.S. territories and possessions, and other public agencies including an Indian tribe or pueblo are eligible for airport development grants if the airport on which the development is required is listed in the National Plan of Integrated Airport Systems (NPIAS). Certain units of local government may be eligible for grants to implement noise compatibility projects. Private owners of public-use reliever airports or airports having at least 2,500 passenger boarding annually and receiving scheduled passenger aircraft service are eligible.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** States, counties, municipalities, U.S. Territories and Possessions, and other public agencies including an Indian Tribe or pueblo, and private owners of reliever airports or airports having at least 2,500 passenger boarding annually and receiving scheduled passenger aircraft service.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants; Advisory Services and Counseling.

## State and Community Highway Safety

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Safety Technology Division Office of Highway Safety Federal Highway Administration U.S. Department of Transportation Washington, DC 20590 Contact: Mila Plosky, Transportation Specialist Telephone: (202) 366-6902 **Program Objective:** To provide a coordinated national highway safety program to reduce traffic accidents, deaths, injuries, and property damage.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State; (b) Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments; (c) U.S. Territories and possession.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** Political subdivisions, through the State Highway Safety Agencies.

Type of Assistance: Formula Grants.

### Formula Grants for Other than Urbanized Areas

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Office of Program Management Office of Capital and Formula Assistance Federal Transit Administration U.S. Department of Transportation 400 Seventh Street, SW., Washington, DC 20590 Telephone: (202) 366-2053 www.fta.dot.gov **Program Objective:** To improve, initiate, or continue public transportation service in non-urbanized areas by providing financial assistance for operating and administrative expenses and for the acquisition, construction, and improvement of facilities and equipment. Also to provide technical assistance for rural transportation providers.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) State agencies; (b) Local public bodies and agencies thereof; (c) Nonprofit organizations; (d) Indian Tribes; and (e) Operators of public transportation services, including inter-city bus services, in rural and small urban areas; (f) Private for-profit operators of transit or paratransit services may participate in the program only through contracts with eligible recipients.

Urbanized areas, as defined by the Bureau of the Census, are not eligible.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** The general public, both users and nonusers, and private and public providers of public transportation in non-urbanized areas.

Type of Assistance: Formula Grants.

# Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector Training and Planning Grants

#### **Program/ Agency Contact**

Research and Special Programs Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation 400 Seventh Street, SW, DHM-64 Washington, DC 20590 Contact: Charles Rogoff, HMEP Grants Manager Telephone: (202) 366-0001 www.dot.gov **Program Objective:** To increase state, local, territorial and Native American tribal effectiveness to safely and efficiently handle hazardous materials accidents and incidents; enhance implementation of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986 (EPCRA); and encourage a comprehensive approach to emergency planning and training by incorporating response to transportation standards.

**Eligible Applicants:** (a) States; (b) U.S. Territories; and (c) Federally Recognized Native American Tribes may apply for either or both planning and training grants. The Governor or Official of each eligible applicant has been asked to designate an agency responsible for managing the program. DOT will work with the designated organization.

**Eligible Beneficiaries:** All segments of the U.S. including Territories and Native American tribal populations that are involved with management of or possible exposure to hazardous materials are benefited. Specifically federal, state, and local responsibilities are assisted through the HMTA grant program. Students and trainees in emergency response and local emergency planning activities are program beneficiaries since grant funds will be used to benefit local programs.

Type of Assistance: Project Grants.

### Indian Tribal Entities Within the Contiguous 48 States Recognized and Eligible to Receive Services From the United States Bureau of Indian Affairs

The listed entities are acknowledged to have the immunities and privileges available to other federally acknowledged Indian Tribes by virtue of their government-to-government relationship with the United States as well as the responsibilities, powers, limitations, and obligations of such tribes. We have continued the practice of listing the Alaskan Native entities separately solely for the purpose of facilitating identification of them and reference to them given the large number of complex Native names.<sup>1</sup>

Absentee-Shawnee Tribe of Indians of Oklahoma Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians of the Agua Caliente Indian Reservation, California Ak Chin Indian Community of the Maricopa (Ak Chin) Indian Reservation, Arizona Alabama-Coushatta Tribes of Texas Alabama-Ouassarte Tribal Town, Oklahoma Alturas Indian Rancheria, California Apache Tribe of Oklahoma Arapahoe Tribe of the Wind River Reservation, Wyoming Aroostook Band of Micmac Indians of Maine Assiniboine and Sioux Tribes of the Fort Peck Indian Reservation, Montana Augustine Band of Cahuilla Mission Indians of the Augustine Reservation, California Bad River Band of the Lake Superior Tribe of Chippewa Indians of the Bad River Reservation, Wisconsin Bay Mills Indian Community of the Sault Ste. Marie Band of Chippewa Indians, Bay Mills Reservation, Michigan Bear River Band of the Rohnerville Rancheria. California Berry Creek Rancheria of Maidu Indians of California Big Lagoon Rancheria, California Big Pine Band of Owens Valley Paiute Shoshone Indians of the Big Pine Reservation, California Big Sandy Rancheria of Mono Indians of California Big Valley Band of Pomo Indians of the Big Valley Rancheria, California Blackfeet Tribe of the Blackfeet Indian Reservation of Montana Blue Lake Rancheria. California Bridgeport Paiute Indian Colony of California Buena Vista Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians of California

Burns Paiute Tribe of the Burns Paiute Indian Colony of Oregon

Cabazon Band of Cahuilla Mission Indians of the Cabazon Reservation, California Cachil DeHe Band of Wintun Indians of the Colusa Indian Community of the Colusa Rancheria, California Caddo Indian Tribe of Oklahoma Cahuilla Band of Mission Indians of the Cahuilla Reservation, California Cahto Indian Tribe of the Laytonville Rancheria, California Campo Band of Diegueno Mission Indians of the Campo Indian Reservation, California Capitan Grande Band of Diegueno Mission Indians of California Barona Group of Capitan Grande Band of Mission Indians of the Barona Reservation, California Viejas (Baron Long) Group of Capitan Grande Band of Mission Indians of the Viejas Reservation, California Catawba Indian Nation (aka Catawba Tribe of South Carolina) Cavuga Nation of New York Cedarville Rancheria, California Chemehuevi Indian Tribe of the Chemehuevi Reservation, California Cher-Ae Heights Indian Community of the Trinidad Rancheria, California Cherokee Nation, Oklahoma Chevenne-Arapaho Tribes of Oklahoma Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe of the Cheyenne River Reservation, South Dakota Chickasaw Nation, Oklahoma Chicken Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians of California Chippewa-Cree Indians of the Rocky Boy's Reservation, Montana Chitimacha Tribe of Louisiana Choctaw Nation of Oklahoma Citizen Potawatomi Nation. Oklahoma Cloverdale Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California Cocopah Tribe of Arizona Coeur D'Alene Tribe of the Coeur D'Alene Reservation. Idaho Cold Springs Rancheria of Mono Indians of California Colorado River Indian Tribes of the Colorado River Indian Reservation, Arizona and California Comanche Indian Tribe, Oklahoma Confederated Salish & Kootenai Tribes of the Flathead Reservation, Montana Confederated Tribes of the Chehalis Reservation, Washington Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation, Washington Confederated Tribes of the Coos, Lower Umpgua and Siuslaw Indians of Oregon Confederated Tribes of the Goshute Reservation, Nevada and Utah Confederated Tribes of the Grand Ronde Community of Oregon Confederated Tribes of the Siletz Reservation, Oregon Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Reservation, Oregon Confederated Tribes of the Warm Springs Reservation of Oregon Confederated Tribes and Bands of the Yakama Indian Nation of the Yakama Reservation, Washington Coquille Tribe of Oregon Cortina Indian Rancheria of Wintun Indians of California Coushatta Tribe of Louisiana Cow Creek Band of Umpgua Indians of Oregon Coyote Valley Band of Pomo Indians of California Crow Tribe of Montana Crow Creek Sioux Tribe of the Crow Creek Reservation, South Dakota Cuyapaipe Community of Diegueno Mission Indians of the Cuyapaipe Reservation, California

Death Valley Timbi-Sha Shoshone Band of California Delaware Nation, Oklahoma (formerly Delaware Tribe of Western Oklahoma) Delaware Tribe of Indians, Oklahoma Dry Creek Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California Duckwater Shoshone Tribe of the Duckwater Reservation, Nevada

Eastern Band of Cherokee Indians of North Carolina Eastern Shawnee Tribe of Oklahoma Elem Indian Colony of Pomo Indians of the Sulphur Bank Rancheria, California Elk Valley Rancheria, California Ely Shoshone Tribe of Nevada Enterprise Rancheria of Maidu Indians of California

Flandreau Santee Sioux Tribe of South Dakota

Forest County Potawatomi Community of Wisconsin Potawatomi Indians, Wisconsin Fort Belknap Indian Community of the Fort Belknap Reservation of Montana Fort Bidwell Indian Community of the Fort Bidwell Reservation of California Fort Independence Indian Community of Paiute Indians of the Fort Independence Reservation, California Fort McDermitt Paiute and Shoshone Tribes of the Fort McDermitt Indian Reservation, Nevada and Oregon Fort McDowell Mohave-Apache Community of the Fort McDowell Indian Reservation, Arizona Fort Mojave Indian Tribe of Arizona, California & Nevada Fort Sill Apache Tribe of Oklahoma

Gila River Indian Community of the Gila River Indian Reservation, Arizona Grand Traverse Band of Ottawa & Chippewa Indians of Michigan Greenville Rancheria of Maidu Indians of California Grindstone Indian Rancheria of Wintun-Wailaki Indians of California Guidiville Rancheria of California

Hannahville Indian Community of Wisconsin Potawatomie Indians of Michigan
Havasupai Tribe of the Havasupai Reservation, Arizona
Ho-Chunk Nation of Wisconsin (formerly known as the Wisconsin Winnebago Tribe)
Hoh Indian Tribe of the Hoh Indian Reservation, Washington
Hoopa Valley Tribe, California
Hopi Tribe of Arizona
Hopland Band of Pomo Indians of the Hopland Rancheria, California
Houlton Band of Maliseet Indians of Maine
Hualapai Indian Tribe of the Hualapai Indian Reservation, Arizona
Huron Potawatomi, Inc., Michigan

Inaja Band of Diegueno Mission Indians of the Inaja and Cosmit Reservation, California Ione Band of Miwok Indians of California Iowa Tribe of Kansas and Nebraska Iowa Tribe of Oklahoma Jackson Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians of California Jamestown S'Klallam Tribe of Washington Jamul Indian Village of California Jena Band of Choctaw Indians, Louisiana Jicarilla Apache Tribe of the Jicarilla Apache Indian Reservation, New Mexico

Kaibab Band of Paiute Indians of the Kaibab Indian Reservation, Arizona Kalispel Indian Community of the Kalispel Reservation, Washington Karuk Tribe of California Kashia Band of Pomo Indians of the Stewarts Point Rancheria, California Kaw Nation, Oklahoma Keweenaw Bay Indian Community of L'Anse and Ontonagon Bands of Chippewa Indians of the L'Anse Reservation, Michigan Kialegee Tribal Town, Oklahoma Kickapoo Tribe of Indians of the Kickapoo Reservation, Kansas Kickapoo Tribe of Oklahoma Kickapoo Traditional Tribe of Texas Kiowa Indian Tribe of Oklahoma Klamath Indian Tribe of Oregon Kootenai Tribe of Idaho

La Jolla Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of the La Jolla Reservation, California La Posta Band of Diegueno Mission Indians of the La Posta Indian Reservation, California Lac Courte Oreilles Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians of the Lac Courte Oreilles Reservation of Wisconsin Lac du Flambeau Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians of the Lac du Flambeau Reservation of Wisconsin Lac Vieux Desert Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians of Michigan Las Vegas Tribe of Paiute Indians of the Las Vegas Indian Colony, Nevada Little River Band of Ottawa Indians of Michigan Little Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians of Michigan Los Coyotes Band of Cahuilla Mission Indians of the Los Coyotes Reservation, California Lovelock Paiute Tribe of the Lovelock Indian Colony, Nevada Lower Brule Sioux Tribe of the Lower Brule Reservation, South Dakota Lower Elwha Tribal Community of the Lower Elwha Reservation, Washington Lower Sioux Indian Community of Minnesota Mdewakanton Sioux Indians of the Lower Sioux Reservation in Minnesota Lummi Tribe of the Lummi Reservation, Washington Lytton Rancheria of California

Makah Indian Tribe of the Makah Indian Reservation, Washington Manchester Band of Pomo Indians of the Manchester-Point Arena Rancheria, California Manzanita Band of Diegueno Mission Indians of the Manzanita Reservation, California Mashantucket Pequot Tribe of Connecticut Match-e-be-nash-she-wish Band of Pottawatomi Indians of Michigan Mechoopda Indian Tribe of Chico Rancheria, California Menominee Indian Tribe of Wisconsin Mesa Grande Band of Diegueno Mission Indians of the Mesa Grande Reservation, California Mescalero Apache Tribe of the Mescalero Reservation, New Mexico Miami Tribe of Oklahoma Miccosukee Tribe of Indians of Florida Middletown Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California Minnesota Chippewa Tribe, Minnesota [Six component reservations: Bois Forte Band (Nett Lake); Fond du Lac Band; Grand Portage Band; Leech Lake Band; Mille Lacs Band; White Earth Band] Mississippi Band of Choctaw Indians, Mississippi Moapa Band of Paiute Indians of the Moapa River Indian Reservation, Nevada Modoc Tribe of Oklahoma Mohegan Indian Tribe of Connecticut Mooretown Rancheria of Maidu Indians of California Morongo Band of Cahuilla Mission Indians of the Morongo Reservation, California Muckleshoot Indian Tribe of the Muckleshoot Reservation, Washington Muscogee (Creek) Nation, Oklahoma

Narragansett Indian Tribe of Rhode Island Navajo Nation, Arizona, New Mexico & Utah Nez Perce Tribe of Idaho Nisqually Indian Tribe of the Nisqually Reservation, Washington Nooksack Indian Tribe of Washington Northern Cheyenne Tribe of the Northern Cheyenne Indian Reservation, Montana Northfork Rancheria of Mono Indians of California Northwestern Band of Shoshoni Nation of Utah (Washakie)

Oglala Sioux Tribe of the Pine Ridge Reservation, South Dakota Omaha Tribe of Nebraska Oneida Nation of New York Oneida Tribe of Wisconsin Onondaga Nation of New York Osage Tribe, Oklahoma Ottawa Tribe of Oklahoma Otoe-Missouria Tribe of Indians, Oklahoma

Paiute Indian Tribe of Utah Paiute-Shoshone Indians of the Bishop Community of the Bishop Colony, California Paiute-Shoshone Tribe of the Fallon Reservation and Colony, Nevada Paiute-Shoshone Indians of the Lone Pine Community of the Lone Pine Reservation, California Pala Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of the Pala Reservation, California Pascua Yaqui Tribe of Arizona Paskenta Band of Nomlaki Indians of California Passamaquoddy Tribe of Maine Pauma Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of the Pauma & Yuima Reservation, California Pawnee Nation of Oklahoma Pechanga Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of the Pechanga Reservation, California Penobscot Tribe of Maine Peoria Tribe of Indians of Oklahoma Picayune Rancheria of Chukchansi Indians of California Pinoleville Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California Pit River Tribe, California (includes Big Bend, Lookout, Montgomery Creek & Roaring Creek Rancherias & XL Ranch) Poarch Band of Creek Indians of Alabama Pokagon Band of Potawatomi Indians of Michigan Ponca Tribe of Indians of Oklahoma Ponca Tribe of Nebraska Port Gamble Indian Community of the Port Gamble Reservation, Washington Potter Valley Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California Prairie Band of Potawatomi Indians, Kansas Prairie Island Indian Community of Minnesota Mdewakanton Sioux Indians of the Prairie Island Reservation, Minnesota Pueblo of Acoma, New Mexico Pueblo of Cochiti, New Mexico Pueblo of Jemez, New Mexico Pueblo of Isleta, New Mexico Pueblo of Laguna, New Mexico Pueblo of Nambe, New Mexico Pueblo of Picuris, New Mexico Pueblo of Pojoaque, New Mexico Pueblo of San Felipe, New Mexico Pueblo of San Juan, New Mexico Pueblo of San Ildefonso, New Mexico Pueblo of Sandia, New Mexico Pueblo of Santa Ana, New Mexico Pueblo of Santa Clara, New Mexico Pueblo of Santo Domingo, New Mexico Pueblo of Taos, New Mexico Pueblo of Tesuque, New Mexico Pueblo of Zia, New Mexico Puyallup Tribe of the Puyallup Reservation, Washington Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe of the Pyramid Lake Reservation, Nevada

Quapaw Tribe of Indians, Oklahoma Quartz Valley Indian Community of the Quartz Valley Reservation of California Quechan Tribe of the Fort Yuma Indian Reservation, California & Arizona Quileute Tribe of the Quileute Reservation, Washington Quinault Tribe of the Quinault Reservation, Washington Ramona Band or Village of Cahuilla Mission Indians of California Red Cliff Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians of Wisconsin Red Lake Band of Chippewa Indians of the Red Lake Reservation, Minnesota Redding Rancheria, California Redwood Valley Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California Reno-Sparks Indian Colony, Nevada Resighini Rancheria, California (formerly known as the Coast Indian Community of Yurok Indians of the Resighini Rancheria) Rincon Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of the Rincon Reservation, California Robinson Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California Rosebud Sioux Tribe of the Rosebud Indian Reservation, South Dakota Round Valley Indian Tribes of the Round Valley Reservation, California (formerly known as the Covelo Indian Community) Rumsey Indian Rancheria of Wintun Indians of California Sac & Fox Tribe of the Mississippi, Iowa Sac & Fox Nation of Missouri, Kansas and Nebraska Sac & Fox Nation, Oklahoma Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe of Michigan, Isabella Reservation Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian Community of the Salt River Reservation, Arizona Samish Indian Tribe, Washington San Carlos Apache Tribe of the San Carlos Reservation, Arizona San Juan Southern Paiute Tribe of Arizona San Manual Band of Serrano Mission Indians of the San Manual Reservation, California San Pasqual Band of Diegueno Mission Indians of California Santa Rosa Indian Community of the Santa Rosa Rancheria, California Santa Rosa Band of Cahuilla Mission Indians of the Santa Rosa Reservation, California Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Mission Indians of the Santa Ynez Reservation, California Santa Ysabel Band of Diegueno Mission Indians of the Santa Ysabel Reservation, California Santee Sioux Tribe of the Santee Reservation of Nebraska Sauk-Suiattle Indian Tribe of Washington

Sault Ste. Marie Tribe of Chippewa Indians of Michigan

Scotts Valley Band of Pomo Indians of California

Seminole Nation of Oklahoma

Seminole Tribe of Florida, Dania, Big Cypress, Brighton, Hollywood & Tampa Reservations Seneca Nation of New York Seneca-Cayuga Tribe of Oklahoma Shakopee Mdewakanton Sioux Community of Minnesota (Prior Lake) Sheep Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians of California Sherwood Valley Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California Shingle Springs Band of Miwok Indians, Shingle Springs Rancheria (Verona Tract), California Shoalwater Bay Tribe of the Shoalwater Bay Indian Reservation, Washington Shoshone Tribe of the Wind River Reservation, Wyoming Shoshone-Bannock Tribes of the Fort Hall Reservation of Idaho Shoshone-Paiute Tribes of the Duck Valley Reservation, Nevada Sisseton-Wahpeton Sioux Tribe of the Lake Traverse Reservation, South Dakota Skokomish Indian Tribe of the Skokomish Reservation, Washington Skull Valley Band of Goshute Indians of Utah Smith River Rancheria, California Snoqualmie Tribe, Washington Soboba Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of the Soboba Reservation, California Sokaogon Chippewa Community of the Mole Lake Band of Chippewa Indians, Wisconsin Southern Ute Indian Tribe of the Southern Ute Reservation, Colorado Spirit Lake Tribe, North Dakota (formerly known as the Devils Lake Sioux Tribe) Spokane Tribe of the Spokane Reservation, Washington Squaxin Island Tribe of the Squaxin Island Reservation, Washington St. Croix Chippewa Indians of Wisconsin, St. Croix Reservation St. Regis Band of Mohawk Indians of New York Standing Rock Sioux Tribe of North & South Dakota Stockbridge-Munsee Community of Mohican Indians of Wisconsin Stillaguamish Tribe of Washington Summit Lake Paiute Tribe of Nevada Suguamish Indian Tribe of the Port Madison Reservation, Washington Susanville Indian Rancheria, California Swinomish Indians of the Swinomish Reservation, Washington Sycuan Band of Diegueno Mission Indians of California Table Bluff Reservation—Wiyot Tribe, California Table Mountain Rancheria of California Te-Moak Tribes of Western Shoshone Indians of Nevada (Four constituent bands: Battle Mountain Band; Elko Band; South Fork Band and Wells Band) Thlopthlocco Tribal Town, Oklahoma Three Affiliated Tribes of the Fort Berthold Reservation, North Dakota Tohono O'odham Nation of Arizona Tonawanda Band of Seneca Indians of New York Tonkawa Tribe of Indians of Oklahoma Tonto Apache Tribe of Arizona

Torres-Martinez Band of Cahuilla Mission Indians of California

Tule River Indian Tribe of the Tule River Reservation, California Tulalip Tribes of the Tulalip Reservation, Washington Tunica-Biloxi Indian Tribe of Louisiana Tuolumne Band of Me-Wuk Indians of the Tuolumne Rancheria of California Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa Indians of North Dakota Tuscarora Nation of New York Twenty-Nine Palms Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of California

United Auburn Indian Community of the Auburn Rancheria of California United Keetoowah Band of Cherokee Indians of Oklahoma Upper Lake Band of Pomo Indians of Upper Lake Rancheria of California Upper Sioux Indian Community of the Upper Sioux Reservation, Minnesota Upper Skagit Indian Tribe of Washington Ute Indian Tribe of the Uintah & Ouray Reservation, Utah Ute Mountain Tribe of the Ute Mountain Reservation; Colorado, New Mexico & Utah Utu Utu Gwaitu Paiute Tribe of the Benton Paiute Reservation, California

Walker River Paiute Tribe of the Walker River Reservation, Nevada
Wampanoag Tribe of Gay Head (Aquinnah) of Massachusetts
Washoe Tribe of Nevada & California (Carson Colony, Dresslerville, Colony, Woodfords Community, Stewart Community, & Washoe Ranches)
White Mountain Apache Tribe of the Fort Apache Reservation, Arizona
Wichita and Affiliated Tribes (Wichita, Keechi, Waco & Tawakonie), Oklahoma
Winnebago Tribe of Nebraska
Winnemucca Indian Colony of Nevada
Wyandotte Tribe of Oklahoma

Yankton Sioux Tribe of South Dakota Yavapai-Apache Nation of the Camp Verde Indian Reservation, Arizona Yavapai-Prescott Tribe of the Yavapai Reservation, Arizona Yerington Paiute Tribe of the Yerington Colony & Campbell Ranch, Nevada Yomba Shoshone Tribe of the Yomba Reservation, Nevada Ysleta Del Sur Pueblo of Texas Yurok Tribe of the Yurok Reservation, California

Zuni Tribe of the Zuni Reservation, New Mexico

## Appendix **B**

### Native Entities Within the State of Alaska Recognized and Eligible to Receive Services From the United States Bureau of Indian Affairs

Village of Afognak Native Village of Akhiok Akiachak Native Community Akiak Native Community Native Village of Akutan Village of Alakanuk Alatna Village Native Village of Aleknagik Algaaciq Native Village (St. Mary's) Allakaket Village Native Village of Ambler Village of Anaktuvuk Pass Yupiit of Andreafski Angoon Community Association Village of Aniak Anvik Village Arctic Village (See Native Village of VenetieTribal Government) Native Village of Atka Asa'carsarmiut Tribe (formerly Native Village of Mountain Village) Atqasuk Village (Atkasook) Village of Atmautluak

Native Village of Barrow Inupiat Traditional Government (formerly Native Village of Barrow) Beaver Village Native Village of Belkofski Village of Bill Moore's Slough Birch Creek Tribe (formerly listed as Birch Creek Village) Native Village of Brevig Mission Native Village of Buckland

Native Village of Cantwell Native Village of Chanega (aka Chenega) Chalkyitsik Village Village of Chefornak Chevak Native Village Chickaloon Native Village Native Village of Chignik Native Village of Chignik Lagoon Chignik Lake Village Chilkat Indian Village (Klukwan) Chilkoot Indian Association (Haines) Chinik Eskimo Community (Golovin) Native Village of Chistochina Native Village of Chitina Native Village of Chuathbaluk (Russian Mission, Kuskokwim) Chuloonawick Native Village Circle Native Community Village of Clark's Point Native Village of Council Craig Community Association Village of Crooked Creek Curyung Tribal Council (formerly Native Village of Dillingham)

Native Village of Deering Native Village of Diomede (aka Inalik) Village of Dot Lake Douglas Indian Association

Native Village of Eagle Native Village of Eek Egegik Village Eklutna Native Village Native Village of Ekuk Ekwok Village Native Village of Elim Emmonak Village Evansville Village (aka Bettles Field) Native Village of Eyak (Cordova)

Native Village of False Pass Native Village of Fort Yukon

Native Village of Gakona Galena Village (aka Louden Village) Native Village of Gambell Native Village of Georgetown Native Village of Goodnews Bay Organized Village of Grayling (aka Holikachuk) Gulkana Village

Native Village of Hamilton Healy Lake Village Holy Cross Village Hoonah Indian Association Native Village of Hooper Bay Hughes Village Huslia Village Hydaburg Cooperative Association

Igiugig Village Village of Iliamna Inupiat Community of the Arctic Slope Iqurmuit Traditional Council (formerly Native Village of Russian Mission) Ivanoff Bay Village

Kaguyak Village Organized Village of Kake Kaktovik Village (aka Barter Island) Village of Kalskag Village of Kaltag Native Village of Kanatak Native Village of Karluk Organized Village of Kasaan Native Village of Kasigluk Kenaitze Indian Tribe Ketchikan Indian Corporation Native Village of Kiana Agdaagux Tribe of King Cove King Island Native Community Native Village of Kipnuk Native Village of Kivalina Klawock Cooperative Association Native Village of Kluti Kaah (aka Copper Center) Knik Tribe Native Village of Kobuk Kokhanok Village New Koliganek Village Council (formerly Koliganek Village) Native Village of Kongiganak Village of Kotlik Native Village of Kotzebue

Native Village of Koyuk Koyukuk Native Village Organized Village of Kwethluk Native Village of Kwigillingok Native Village of Kwinhagak (aka Quinhagak)

Native Village of Larsen Bay Levelock Village Lesnoi Village (aka Woody Island) Lime Village Village of Lower Kalskag

Manley Hot Springs Village Manokotak Village Native Village of Marshall (aka Fortuna Ledge) Native Village of Mary's Igloo McGrath Native Village Native Village of Mekoryuk Mentasta Traditional Council (formerly Mentasta Lake Village) Metlakatla Indian Community, Annette Island Reserve

Native Village of Minto Naknek Native Village Native Village of Nanwalek (aka English Bay) Native Village of Napaimute Native Village of Napakiak Native Village of Napaskiak Native Village of Nelson Lagoon Nenana Native Association New Stuyahok Village Newhalen Village Newtok Village Native Village of Nightmute Nikolai Village Native Village of Nikolski Ninilchik Village Native Village of Noatak Nome Eskimo Community Nondalton Village Noorvik Native Community Northway Village Native Village of Nuiqsut (aka Nooiksut) Nulato Village Nunakauyarmiut Tribe (formerly Native Village of Toksook Bay) Native Village of Nunapitchuk

Village of Ohogamiut Village of Old Harbor Orutsararmuit Native Village (aka Bethel) Oscarville Traditional Village Native Village of Ouzinkie

Native Village of Paimiut Pauloff Harbor Village Pedro Bay Village Native Village of Perryville Petersburg Indian Association Native Village of Pilot Point Pilot Station Traditional Village Native Village of Pitka's Point Platinum Traditional Village Native Village of Point Hope Native Village of Point Lay Native Village of Port Graham Native Village of Port Heiden Native Village of Port Lions Portage Creek Village (aka Ohgsenakale) Pribilof Islands Aleut Communities of St. Paul & St. George Islands

Qagan Tayagungin Tribe of Sand Point Village

Rampart Village Village of Red Devil Native Village of Ruby

Village of Salamatoff Organized Village of Saxman Native Village of Savoonga Saint George Island (See Pribilof Islands Aleut Communities of St. Paul & St. George Islands) Native Village of Saint Michael Saint Paul Island (See Pribilof Islands Aleut Communities of St. Paul & St. George Islands) Native Village of Scammon Bay Native Village of Selawik Seldovia VillageTribe Shageluk Nativeive Village Native Village of Shaktoolik Native Village of Sheldon's Point Native Village of Shishmaref Native Village of Shungnak Sitka Tribe of Alaska

Skagway Village Village of Sleetmute Village of Solomon South Naknek Village Stebbins Community Association Native Village of Stevens Village of Stony River Takotna Village Native Village of Tanacross Native Village of Tanana Native Village of Tatitlek Native Village of Tazlina Telida Village Native Village of Teller Native Village of Tetlin Central Council of the Tlingit & Haida Indian Tribes Traditional Village of Togiak Tuluksak Native Community Native Village of Tuntutuliak Native Village of Tununak Twin Hills Village Native Village of Tyonek

Ugashik Village Umkumiute Native Village Native Village of Unalakleet Qawalangin Tribe of Unalaska Native Village of Unga

Village of Venetie (See Native Village of Venetie Tribal Government) Native Village of Venetie Tribal Government (Arctic Village and Village of Venetie)

Village of Wainwright Native Village of Wales Native Village of White Mountain Wrangell Cooperative Association

Yakutat Tlingit Tribe

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Federal Register/Vol. 65. No. 49/ Dated: March 3, 2000, Kevin Gover, Assistant Secretary, Bureau of Indian Affairs

## Appendix C

## U.S. Department Websites

U.S. Department of Agriculture http://www.usda.gov/

U.S. Department of Commerce http://www.doc.gov/

U.S. Department of Education http://www.ed.gov/

U.S. Department of Defense http://www.defenselink.mil/sites/

Environmental Protection Agency http://www.epa.gov/

Equal Employment Opportunity Commission http://www.eeoc.gov/

Federal Emergency Management Agency http://www.fema.gov/

General Services Administration http://www.gsa.gov/

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services http://www.dhhs.gov/

## U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

http://www.hud.gov/

U.S. Department of the Interior http://www.doi.gov/

Morris K. Udall Foundation http://www.udall.gov/

U.S. Department of Justice http://www.usdoj.gov/

Small Business Administration http://www.sba.gov/

U.S. Department of Transportation http://www.dot.gov/

## Appendix D

### Criminal Justice and Substance Abuse Resources, Information, and Technical Assistance

#### **American Correctional Association**

301-918-1800 http://www.corrections.com/aca

American Correctional Association (ACA) is an organization developed specifically for practitioners in the correctional profession, supports the cause of corrections and correctional effectiveness.

#### **American Correctional Health Services Association**

937-586-3708 http://www.corrections.com/achsa

American Correctional Health Services Association (ACHSA) is a membership organization for all correctional health care professionals. It serves as a forum for current issues and needs confronting correctional health care, and it provides education, skill development, and support for personnel, organizations, and decision makers involved in correctional health services.

#### **American Jail Association**

301-790-3930 http://www.corrections.com/aja The American Jail Association (AJA) is a national nonprofit organization dedicated to supporting those who work in and operate our nation's jails.

#### American Probation and Parole Association

606-244-8203 http://www.csg.org/appa

The American Probation and Parole Association (APPA) is an association composed of individuals from the United States and Canada actively involved with probation, parole, and community-based corrections, in both adult and juvenile sectors. APPA provides training workshops, symposiums, and training institutes and produces a variety of research documents as resources for its membership.

#### Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA)

202-208-3711

www.doi.gov/bia

The BIA assists American Indian and Alaska Natives to achieve their self-determination goals and to enhance the federal government's responsibility to provide opportunities for Indian nations to address alcohol and substance abuse. Their goals are met by coordinating with other federal agencies to provide resources and funding support to Indian nations. More specifically, the Office of Alcohol and Substance Abuse Prevention provides leadership and direction for all BIA alcohol and substance abuse prevention activities. Also visit the BIA Highway Safety Program at the web site address above and at (505) 248-5053.

#### Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) Clearinghouse [component of National Criminal Justice Reference Service (800-851-3420)] 800-688-4252

The BJA Clearinghouse offers in-depth information about BJA's programs and funding opportunities. NCJRS shares BJA program information with State and local agencies and community groups across the country. Information specialists provide reference and referral services, publication distribution, participation in and support for conferences, and other networking and outreach activities.

#### Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) Home Page

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/BJA (to access this Web site, BJA must be capitalized) The BJA Web page offers information both on funding assistance and on technical assistance, including on-line publications as well as information about evaluation, training, and the BJA Clearinghouse.

#### Bureau of Justice Statistics (BJS) Clearinghouse

[component of National Criminal Justice Reference Service (800-851-3420)] 800-732-3277

Bureau of Justice Statistics Home Page: http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/bjs

Bureau of Justice Statistics Clearinghouse On-line: http://www.ncjrs.org/stathome.htm The BJS Clearinghouse provides BJS publications, BJS mailing list information, criminal justice statistics on request, custom literature searches of the National Criminal Justice Reference Service (NCJRS) Data Base, referrals to other sources of crime data, and data assistance from information specialists at the Clearinghouse.

#### Center for Substance Abuse Research (CESAR)

301-403-8329

#### http://bsos.umd.edu/cesar/cesar.html

CESAR, at the University of Maryland, College Park, collects, analyzes and disseminates information on the nature and extent of substance abuse and related problems in Maryland and nationally. CESAR also provides technical assistance and training to state and local government agencies.

#### **Corrections Connection Network**

#### [\*\*contains many important hyperlinks\*\*]

http://www.corrections.com

The Corrections Connection Network provides hyperlinks to hundreds of corrections professionals and organizations on the Web. It is updated weekly and contains information about upcoming training shows and events, mailing lists, books, publications, videos, etc.

#### Criminal Justice Institute, Inc. (CJI)

914-533-2000

http://www.cji-inc.com

CJI provides professional services to state correctional agencies, produces research documents and publications, including the annual editions of the Corrections Yearbook, and assists corrections agencies with regard to correctional litigation.

#### Criminal Justice Links [\*\*contains many important hyperlinks\*\*]

http://www.fsu.edu/~crimdo/cj.html

This Web site, maintained by Cecil Greek (through the School of Criminology and Criminal Justice at Florida State University), is an extensive resource for hyperlinks for both criminal justice and for addiction information.

#### \*Drug Information and Strategy Clearinghouse

[operated by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)] 800-578-3472

#### \*Drug Policy Information Clearinghouse / Office of National Drug Control Policy (ONDCP) Drugs and Crime Clearinghouse [formerly the Drug & Crime Data Center & Clearinghouse]

#### 800-666-3332

http://www.ncjrs.org/drgshome.htm (part of the Justice Information Center: A Service of NCJRS) This clearinghouse collects, analyzes, and distributes data on drugs and crime with a special emphasis on serving the data needs of state and local government agencies. The Center offers access to a library and specialized bibliographic databases, including federal drug data sources and special reports on drugs and crime.

#### Federal Drug, Alcohol, and Crime Clearinghouse Network

800-788-2800

The Federal Drug, Alcohol, and Crime Clearinghouse Network serves as a single point of entry for all federal alcohol and drug clearinghouses, including the National Clearinghouse for Alcohol and Drug Information (NCADI), the National Criminal Justice Reference Service (NCJRS), the Drug Policy Information Clearinghouse (operated by the Office of National Drug Control Policy [ONDCP]), the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) National AIDS Clearinghouse, and the Drug Information and Strategy Clearinghouse (operated by the Department of Housing and Urban Development [HUD]).

#### Institute of Behavioral Research (Texas Christian University)

http://www.ibr.tcu.edu

Substance abuse and criminal justice research, publications, and assessment and intake instruments can be obtained from this Web site. Abstracts on substance abuse journal articles and evaluation studies, counseling manuals, and the institute's newsletter can also be viewed.

## Justice Research and Statistics Association (JRSA) [funded by the Bureau of Justice Statistics]

202-842-9330 (ask for an information specialist)

http://www.jrsainfo.org

JRSA's Clearinghouse for criminal justice information is a comprehensive collection of state criminal justice programs, research, publications, and policy analysis. The Clearinghouse identifies sources of state criminal justice information and serves as a key to the major criminal justice issues under debate and analysis in the states. The JRSA Library, a component of the Clearinghouse, houses a comprehensive collection of state Statistical Analysis Center reports and newsletters as well as bulletins and reports from federal, state, and private criminal justice agencies and organizations.

#### Juvenile Justice Clearinghouse [component of National Criminal Justice Reference Service (800-851-3420)]

800-638-8736

#### National Archive of Criminal Justice Data

800-999-0960 http://www.icpsr.umich.edu/nacjd

#### National Center on Addiction and Substance Abuse (CASA) at Columbia University

212-841-5200 http://www.casacolumbia.org

CASA is a unique advocacy organization that brings together under one roof all of the professional disciplines (health policy, medicine and nursing, communications, economics, sociology and anthropology, law and law enforcement, business, religion, and education) needed to study and comb at all forms of substance abuse: illegal drugs, pills, alcohol and tobacco. This Web site provides a variety of information, including press releases, publications, Internet resources, personal stories, and a discussion forum.

#### \*National Clearinghouse for Alcohol and Drug Information (NCADI)

800-729-6686 or 301-468-2600

http://www.health.org

This Clearinghouse disseminates a wide range of materials on drug education, prevention, and treatment, including federal government publications, fact sheets, posters, audiovisual materials, prevention curricula and program descriptions, resource guides, and articles. NCADI maintains an extensive full-service library and coordinates the Regional Alcohol Drug Awareness Network (RADAR), which facilitates access to State and local sources of information about alcohol and other drugs. The Center for Substance Abuse Treatment (CSAT) offers many relevant documents through NCADI. A few of these documents are listed below:

#### **CSAT Technical Assistance Publications Series**

Relapse Prevention and the Substance-Abusing Criminal Offender. Technical Assistance Publications Series, No. 8, 1993. Order No. BKD121.

Counselor's Manual for Relapse Prevention With Chemically Dependent Criminal Offenders. Technical Assistance Publications Series, No. 19, 1996. Order No. PHD723.

#### **CSAT Treatment Improvement Protocol (TIP) Series**

Screening and Assessment for Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Among Adults in the Criminal Justice System. Treatment Improvement Protocol (TIP) Series, No. 7, 1994. Order No. BKD138.

Combining Substance Abuse Treatment with Intermediate Sanctions for Adults in the Criminal Justice System. Treatment Improvement Protocol (TIP) Series, No. 12, 1994. Order No. BKD144. Planning for Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Treatment for Adults in the Criminal Justice System. Treatment Improvement Protocol (TIP) Series, No. 17, 1995. Order No. BKD165. Combining Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Treatment with Diversion for Juveniles in the Justice System. Treatment Improvement Protocol (TIP) Series, No. 21, 1995. Order No. BKD169. Treatment Drug Courts: Integrating Substance Abuse Treatment With Legal Case Processing. Treatment Improvement Protocol (TIP) Series, No. 23, 1996. Order No. BKD205.

#### **CSAT Treatment Improvement Protocol (TIP) Series**

Continuity of Offender Treatment for Substance Use Disorders From Institution to Community. Treatment Improvement Protocol (TIP) Series, No. 30.

Additionally, NCADI offers application kits to potential grantee organizations and offers the latest in research and information on alcohol-related issues. Publications and grant announcements videos and other materials can be obtained, including alcohol treatment resources in your area. The NCADI clear-inghouse provides information for: a) Publications for Native Americans (www.health.org/multicul/natamer/napubs.htm) and b) Resources and Organizations for Native

Americans (www.health.org.multicul/natamer/nares.htm).

#### National Clearinghouse for Criminal Justice Information Systems

916-392-2550

http://www.ch.search.org

The National Clearinghouse is sponsored by the Bureau of Justice Statistics, U.S. Department of Justice, and is operated by SEARCH, The National Consortium for Justice Information and Statistics. The Clearinghouse provides impartial information on available software solutions, promotes the development and exchange of public domain and Shareware criminal justice information systems, and facilitates communication among justice practitioners nationwide.

#### **National Cocaine Hotline**

800-COCAINE (800-262-2463)

#### National Commission on Correctional Health Care (NCCHC)

773-528-0818

#### http://www.corrections.com/ncchc

The NCCHC is a not-for-profit organization working to improve the quality of care in our Nation's jails, prisons, and juvenile detention and confinement facilities. NCCHC offers services and programs, such as health services accreditation, educational conferences and seminars, quality assurance reviews, technical assistance and consultation, professional certification, and reference publications.

#### \*National Criminal Justice Reference Service (NCJRS)—National Institute of Justice

800-851-3420 or 301-251-5500

http://www.ncjrs.org [Justice Information Center]

NCJRS provides information and data on drug testing, drug control enforcement, sentencing and corrections policies for drug offenders, drug abuse prevention and treatment in criminal justice settings, drug-related crime, research evaluation strategies, and specialized bibliographic searches. NCJRS maintains a library, a large computerized database and microfilm collection, and a special resource package and compact disc (CD-ROM) library on drugs and crime.

Teh NCJRS Training Catalogue offers a comprehensive list of organizations that do training and TA for juvenile justice. It outlines contact information and areas of expertise for each. http://www.ncjrs.org/ojjdp/html/trngcatalg/contents.html

#### National GAINS Center for People with Co-Occurring Disorders in the Justice System

800-311-GAIN (800-311-4246)

http://www.prainc.com/gains

The Center is a national locus for the collection and dissemination of information about effective mental health and substance abuse services for people with co-occurring disorders who come in contact with the justice system. The GAINS Center also provides technical assistance to help localities plan, implement, and operate appropriate, cost-effective programs for offenders with mental health and substance abuse problems.

#### National Institute of Corrections (NIC)/Information Center

800-877-1461 or 303-682-0213 http://www.nicic.org The Web site provides information about NIC, including programs and recent publications.

#### **Office of National Drug Control Policy**

http://www.whitehousedrugpolicy.gov

The Office of National Drug Control Policy (ONDCP) offers the 1998 Directory and Resource Guide of Public and Private Sector Drug Control Grants to help individuals and organizations at the State, local, and community levels to gain access to a wide range of drug-related funding support. The Guide serves as a "roadmap" to connect people with resources and to assist them in negotiating the often complex maze of drug control programming and grant requirements. It features a significantly expanded section on the growing anti-drug funding opportunities now available through private foundations.

#### Office of Justice Programs (OJP)

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov

OJP works to develop, operate, and evaluate a wide range of criminal and juvenile justice programs. This site offers information on grants and resources available through the U.S. Department of Justice.

#### Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention (OJJDP)

http://www.ncjrs.org/ojjhome.htm

The OJJDP Web site is designed to provide information and resources on both general areas of interest about juvenile justice and delinquency including conferences, funding opportunities, new publications, and comprehensive strategy as a framework for communities to combat youth crime.

### **Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program Technical Assistance (Prisons/Jails)**

800-848-6325

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/cpo (Corrections Program Office)

This program offers many types of technical assistance to States and local government that have received funding under the Office of Justice Programs formula grant Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program (RSAT) for State prisons and local jails. Technical assistance provided includes direct technical assistance, training activities, a mentor program, an information resource center, and a Web site.

#### Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA)

http://www.samhsa.gov

This Web site offers information about SAMHSA as well as links to the Center for Mental Health Services, the Center for Substance Abuse Prevention, and the Center for Substance Abuse Treatment.

#### **Therapeutic Communities of America**

202-296-3503

Therapeutic Communities of America is a national professional association which regularly address the needs of hard core substance abusers, those with long drug-using histories and criminal backgrounds, who lack education, vocational skills, and family support networks. Therapeutic Communities of America has grown from its residential program base and now includes outpatient services, day treatment, crisis intervention, family therapy, case management, education, prevention, and relapse prevention.

## Glossary of Terms Used in the Tribal Resource Guide

This Tribal Resource Guide offers a brief synopsis of program objectives, applicant eligibility, eligible beneficiaries, and the types of assistance available coupled with contact information for each resource. Resources are grouped by U.S. Department and then by individual office's offerings. Types of assistance vary from agency to agency. The following list of definitions is taken from the General Services Administration's definitions of each type of assistance offered in this guide.

The Guide makes a distinction between those who are eligible to apply and those who are eligible beneficiaries from the offered resource. Resources that do not **explicitly** cite Federally Recognized Tribal Governments American Indian or Alaskan Native as an eligible applicant, but cites these tribal categories as eligible beneficiaries are distinguished by \*.

#### (A) Formula Grants:

Allocations of money to states or their subdivisions in accordance with distribution formulas prescribed by law or administrative regulation, for activities of a continuing nature not confined to a specific project.

#### (B) Project Grants:

The funding, for fixed or known periods, of specific projects. Project grants can include fellowships, scholarships, research grants, training grants, traineeships, experimental and demonstration grants, evaluation grants, planning grants, technical assistance grants, survey grants, and construction grants.

#### (C) Direct Payments for Specified Use:

Financial assistance from the federal government provided directly to individuals, private firms, and other private institutions does encourage or subsidize a particular activity by conditioning the receipt of the assistance on a particular performance by the recipient. This does not include solicited contracts for the procurement of goods and services for the Federal government.

#### (D) Direct Loans:

Financial assistance provided through the lending of Federal monies for a specific period of time, with a reasonable expectation of repayment. Such loans may or may not require the payment of interest.

#### (E) Guaranteed/Insured Loans:

Programs in which the Federal government makes an arrangement to identify a lender against part or all of any defaults by those responsible for repayment of loans.

#### (F) Sale, Exchange, or Donation of Property and Goods:

Programs which provide for the sale, exchange, or donation of Federal real property, personal property, commodities, and other goods including land, buildings, equipment, food and drugs. This does not include the loan of, use of, or access to Federal facilities or property.

#### (G) Use of Property, Facilities, and Equipment:

Programs which provide for the loan of, use of, or access to Federal facilities or property wherein the federally owned facilities or property do not remain in the possession of the recipient of the assistance.

#### (H) Provision of Specialized Services:

Programs which provide Federal personnel directly to perform certain tasks for the benefit of communities or individuals. These services may be performed in conjunction with nonfederal personnel, but they involve more than consultation, advice, or counseling.

#### (I) Advisory Services and Counseling:

Programs which provide Federal specialists to consult, advise, or counsel communities or individuals to include conferences, workshops, or personal contacts. This may involve the use of published information, but only in a secondary capacity.

#### (J) Dissemination of Technical Information:

Programs which provide for the publication and distribution of information or data of a specialized or technical nature frequently through clearinghouses or libraries. This does not include conventional public information services designed for general public consumption.

#### (K) Training:

Programs which provide instructional activities conducted directly by a Federal agency for individuals not employed by the Federal government.

#### (L) Investigation of Complaints:

Federal administrative agency activities that are initiated in response to requests, either formal or informal, to examine or investigate claims of violations of Federal statutes, policies, or procedure. The origination of such claims must come from outside the Federal government.

# Index

#### Agriculture

Agriculture on Indian Lands	51
Environmental Quality Incentive Program	. 3
Forestry Incentives Program	. 3
Indian Tribes and Tribal Corporation Loans	. 1
Irrigation Operations and Maintenance on Indian Lands	61
Small Farmer Outreach Training and Technical Assistance Program	. 4
Technical Assistance and Training Grants	. 5
Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities	. 5

#### Business

Basic Minority Business Development Centers	7
Business and Industry Loans	4
Economic Adjustment Assistance	7
Indian Economic Development	56
Minority Business Opportunity Committee Development	8
Native American Program	8
8 (A) Business Development	77

#### **Community Development**

Alaskan Indian Allotments and Subsistence Preference - Alaska	
National Interest Lands Conservation Act	
Alaska Native/Native Hawaiian Institutions Assisting Communities	49
American Indian/Native American Community Planning Program	41
Community Base Reuse Plans	11
Community Development Block Grants/Economic Development Initiative	45
Community Development Block Grants/Special Purpose Grants/	
Technical Assistance Program	45
Community Economic Adjustment Planning Assistance.	13
Community Economic Adjustment Planning Assistance for Reductions in	
Defense Industry Employment.	13
Growth Management Planning Assistance	11
Indian Community Fire Protection.	56
Joint Land Use Studies	
Native American Programs	

#### **Cultural Enrichment**

American Battlefield Protection	63
Indian Arts and Crafts Development	55
Promote the Survival and Continuing Vitality of Native American Languages	30

#### Education

Administrative Cost Grants for Indian Schools	. 51
Assistance to Tribally-Controlled Community Colleges and Universities	. 53
Even Start - Indian Tribes and Tribal Organizations	. 15
Indian Adult Education	. 55
Indian Child and Family Education	. 55
Indian Education Assistance to Schools	. 57
Indian Education - Grants to Local Educational Agencies	. 15
Indian Education - Higher Education Grant Program	. 57
Indian Graduate Student Scholarships	. 58
Indian Schools - Student Transportation.	. 60
Indian Vocational Training - United Tribes Technical College	. 61
Minority Science and Engineering Improvement	. 16
Morris K. Udall Native American Congressional Internship Program	. 65
Rehabilitation Services - American Indians with Disabilities	. 16
Tribal Colleges Education Equity Grants	1
Tribal Colleges Endowment Program	1

#### **Emergency Planning**

Hazardous Materials Training Program for Implementation of the	
Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act (SARA) of 1986	25
Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector Training and Planning Grants	80

#### Employment

Employment Discrimination Project Contracts -Indian Tribes	23
Employment Discrimination - State and Local Fair Employment	
Practices Agency Contracts	23
Indian Employment Assistance	58

#### Environment

Brownfield Program
Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds
Consolidated Pesticide Enforcement Cooperative Agreements
Cooperative Inspection Agreements with States and Tribes
Endangered Species on Indian Lands
Environmental Justice Grants to Small Community Groups
Fish and Wildlife Management Assistance
Forestry on Indian Lands
Great Lakes Program
Habitat Conservation
Indian Environmental General Assistance Program
Improving the Capability of Indian Tribal Government to Regulate Environmental Quality
Leaking Underground Storage Tank Trust Fund Program

Facility Maintenance
Indian Education Facilities, Operations and Maintenance
Government
Aid to Tribal Governments
General Services
Donation of Federal Surplus Personal Property
Health
Bilingual/Bicultural Service Demonstration Projects in Minority Health
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse
Children's Health Protection
Circles of Care
Community Action Grants
Demonstration Projects for Indian Health
Epidemiology Cooperative Agreements
Food Distribution Program On Indian Reservations
Great Lakes Human Health Effects Research
Health Professions Pre-graduate Scholarship Program for Indians
Health Professions Preparatory Scholarship Program for Indians
Health Professions Recruitment Program for Indian
Health Professions Scholarship Program
Indian Health Service - Health Management Development Program.       36
Indian Health Service Research
Injury Prevention Program for American Indians and
Alaskan Natives - Cooperative Agreements
Matching Grants for Health Professions Scholarships to Indian Tribes
Minority Biomedical Research Support
Minority Community Health Coalition Demonstration
Targeted Capacity Expansion Program.    43
Technical Assistance and Capacity Development Demonstration Program
for HIV/AIDS - Related Services in Highly Impacted Minority Communities
Urban Indian Health Services
Youth Violence Prevention
Housing Services
Fair Housing Assistance Program - State and Local
Home Investment Partnerships Program
Indian Community Development Block Grant Program

Indian Community Development Block Grant Program	46
Indian Housing Assistance.	59
Public and Indian Housing Drug Elimination Program.	47
Public and Indian Housing - Indian Loan Guarantee Program	48

#### **Housing Services**

Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services	. 48
Title VI Federal Guarantees for Financing Tribal Housing Activities	. 49

#### **Human Services**

Adolescent Family Life Research Grants	40
Assistance for Indian Children with Severe Disabilities	52
Attorney's Fees - Indian Rights	53
Disabilities Prevention.	32
Indian Child Welfare Act - Title II Grants	56
Indian Rights Protection	60
Indian Self-Determination Contract Support	60
Indian Social Services - General Assistance	61
Litigation Support for Indian Rights	62
Services to Indian Children, Elderly and Families	64
Social Services Research and Demonstration	31
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families	32

#### **Justice Services**

Children's Justice Act Partnerships for Indian Communities	71
Crime Victim Assistance/Discretionary Grants.	72
Rural Domestic Violence and Child Victimization Enforcement Grant Program.	74
Tribal Courts	62
Tribal Court Assistance Program	68
Violence Against Women Formula Grants	75
Violence Against Women Discretionary Grants for Indian Tribal Governments	75

#### Law Enforcement

Correctional Facilities on Tribal Lands Discretionary Grant Program.	68
Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement Discretionary Grants Program	67
Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies.	73
Improvement and Repair of Indian Detention Facilities	54
Indian Law Enforcement	59
Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program	67
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants	69
Technical Assistance for Violent Offender Incarceration and Truth-In-Sentencing	
Incentive Program or Facilities on Tribal Lands Discretionary Grant Program	69
Tribal Youth Program	70

#### Transportation

Airport Improvement Program.	79
Formula Grants for Other than Urbanized Areas	80
State and Community Highway Safety.	79

## **User Feedback Form**

Please complete and return this form to assist the National Institute of Corrections in assessing the value and utility of its publications. Detach from the document (or photocopy) and mail to:

Publications Feedback National Institute of Corrections 320 First Street, N.W. Washington, DC 20534

1.	What is your general reaction to this document?					
	Excellent	Good	Average	Poor	Useless	

2. To what extend do you see this document as being useful in terms of:

	Useful	Of some use	Not useful
Providing new or important information			
Developing or implementing new programs			
Modifying existing programs			
Administering ongoing programs			
Providing appropriate liaisons			

3. Do you believe that more should be done in this subject area? If so, please specify the types of assistance needed.

4.	In what ways	could this	document	be improved?
----	--------------	------------	----------	--------------

- 5. How did this document come to your attention?
- 6. How are you planning to use the information contained in this document?
- 7. Please check one item that best describes your affiliation with corrections or criminal justice. If a governmental program, please also indicate the level of government.

	Citizen group College/university Community corrections Court Department of corrections or prison	Jail Juvenile justice Legislative body Parole Probation	 Professional organization Other government agency Tribal government Other (please specify)
8. Optional:	-		
Name:		 Tribe:	 
Address	5:		
Telepho	one:	E-mail:	

Please use the back of this form for additional comments.

Tribal Resource Guide July 2002

Additional C	<b>Comments:</b>
--------------	------------------